
 

Page 1 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 
 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m., 
Canterberry Room 

 
1. PUBLIC HEARING- FOR THE PROPOSED BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

FOR FISCAL YEAR MAY 1, 2017 – APRIL 30, 2018 (Notice of the Public Hearing was published in the 
Chicago Tribune Newspaper – April 6, 2017) 

a. Call to Order and Roll Call 
b. Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year 

May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018 
c. Adjournment of Public Hearing 

 
2. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 

CALL  
 

3. OPEN FORUM 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
  

a. APPROVAL OF April 17, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. March 20, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING March 31, 2017 

i. Approval of Warrant No. 598 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS   
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 
 

6. STAFF RECOGNITION  
a. None 
 

7. REPORTS:  
a. Executive Director & Marketing Department Report  
b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
d. Parks & Planning Report  



 

Page 2 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Ordinance 17-0417: An Ordinance Setting Forth the Budget and Making Appropriations 

of Sums of Money for All of the Necessary Expenditures of the Oak Brook Park District 
of Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, for the Corporate Purpose for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning May 1, 2017 and Ending April 30, 2018 
The tentative Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 17-0417 for Fiscal Year May 1, 2017 – April 
30, 2018 has been placed on public display for thirty days following the publication notice in the 
Doings - Oak Brook Newspaper on March 16, 2017. The Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 
encompasses all previous reviews by the Board of Commissioners.   

b. Ordinance 17-0418: An Ordinance For Transferring Anticipated Unexpended Funds 
From Certain Appropriation Items To Other Items Of Appropriation 

c. Resolution 17-0419: A Resolution Approving Amending the Contract Between The Oak 
Brook Park District And Classic Landscape, Ltd. For the Turf Grass Mowing Project 

d. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated March 10, 2008 by and between 
the Board of Education of Butler School District # 53, the Oak Brook Park District and 
the LaGrange Area Department of Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool 
Program At The Oak Brook Park District Recreation Center for School Year 2017- 2018 

e. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated January 18, 2016, By And Between 
The Board Of Education Of Butler School District #53 And The Oak Brook Park District 
For A Before and After School Program at Brook Forest Elementary School for School 
Year 2017-2018 

f. Tennis Center HVAC Improvements Bid 
g. 2017 Amendment to the Oak Brook Park District Executive Director Employment 

Agreement 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Age for Active Adult Senior Membership Discount 
b. Approval of a Travel Expense for Commissioner Tan’s attendance at the IAPD 

Commissioner Bootcamp Training held on May 20, 2017in the amount of $131.86 
(Requires waiving the Board Rules to Approve at this Meeting.) 

 
10. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 

COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON May 15, 2017, 6:30 p.m. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Page 1 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  

order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  

contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m., 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING- FOR THE PROPOSED BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR MAY 1, 2017 – APRIL 30, 2018 (Notice of the Public Hearing was published in the 
Chicago Tribune Newspaper – April 6, 2017) 

a. Call to Order and Roll Call [Call to Order the Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget 
and Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018 and ask the 
Recording Secretary to conduct the Roll Call.] 

b. Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year 
May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018   Ask staff for presentation of the Proposed Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year May 1, 2016 – April 30, 2017.   
 
Then ask whether there are any public comments on the Proposed Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance. If necessary, the President may advise speakers to observe 
the rules set forth in Section 1.1VII B of the Rules of the Board of Park Commissioners.] 
 

c. Adjournment of Public Hearing  [Ask for Motion (and Second) to Adjourn the Public 
Hearing.  Voice vote  -- "All in favor. . . "] 

 
2. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 

CALL [Call to Order the Regular Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of 
Commissioners and ask the Recording Secretary to conduct the Roll Call.] 

 
3. OPEN FORUM  [Ask whether there are any Public Comments under “Open Forum.” If 

necessary, the President may advise speakers to observe the rules set forth in Section 1.1VII B 
of the Rules of the Board of Park Commissioners] 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA  [Request a Motion (and Second) to approve taking a Single Omnibus 

Vote on the Consent Agenda, as Presented. Roll Call Vote—VOTE MUST BE UNANIMOUS.] 
[Then Ask for a Motion (and Second) to Approve the Consent Agenda, as Presented.  Roll Call 
Vote…] 
  

a. APPROVAL OF April 17, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. March 20, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING March 31, 2017 

i. Approval of Warrant No. 598 



 

Page 2 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  

order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  

contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS [Discussion Only]  
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 

 
6. STAFF RECOGNITION [Discussion Only] 

a. None 
 

7. REPORTS: [Discussion Only] 
a. Executive Director & Marketing Department Report  
b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
d. Parks & Planning Report 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Ordinance 17-0417: An Ordinance Setting Forth the Budget and Making Appropriations 
of Sums of Money for All of the Necessary Expenditures of the Oak Brook Park District 
of Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, for the Corporate Purpose for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning May 1, 2017 and Ending April 30, 2018 
The tentative Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 17-0417 for Fiscal Year May 1, 2017 – April 
30, 2018 has been placed on public display for thirty days following the publication notice in the 
Doings - Oak Brook Newspaper on March 16, 2017. The Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 
encompasses all previous reviews by the Board of Commissioners. [Request a Motion and a 
second to Approve Ordinance 17-0417: An Ordinance Setting Forth the Budget and 
Making Appropriations of Sums of Money for All of the Necessary Expenditures of the 
Oak Brook Park District of Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, for the Corporate 
Purpose for the Fiscal Year Beginning May 1, 2017 and Ending April 30, 2018.  Roll Call 
Vote…]  

b. Ordinance 17-0418: An Ordinance For Transferring Anticipated Unexpended Funds 
From Certain Appropriation Items To Other Items Of Appropriation [Request a Motion 
and a second to Approve Ordinance 17-0418: An Ordinance for Transferring Anticipated 
Unexpended Funds from Certain Appropriation Items to Other Items of Appropriation.  
Roll Call Vote…] 

  



 

Page 3 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  

order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  

contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

c. Resolution 17-0419: A Resolution Approving Amending the Contract Between The Oak 
Brook Park District And Classic Landscape, Ltd. For the Turf Grass Mowing Project 
[Request a Motion and a second to Approve Resolution 17-0419: A Resolution 
Amending a Contract Between the Oak Brook Park District and Classic Landscape, Ltd. 
For Turf Grass Mowing.  Roll Call Vote…] 

d. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated March 10, 2008 By and Between 
the Board of Education of Butler School District # 53, the Oak Brook Park District and 
the LaGrange Area Department of Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool 
Program At The Oak Brook Park District Recreation Center for School Year 2017- 2018 
[Request a Motion and a second to Approve the Renewal of the Intergovernmental 
Agreement Dated March 10, 2008 By and Between the Board of Education of Butler 
School District # 53, the Oak Brook Park District, and the LaGrange Area Department of 
Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool Programs at the Oak Brook Park District 
Recreation Center for School Year 2017-20189.  Roll Call Vote…] 

e. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated January 18, 2016, By And Between 
The Board Of Education Of Butler School District #53 And The Oak Brook Park District 
For A Before and After School Program at Brook Forest Elementary School for School 
Year 2017-2018 [Request a Motion and a second to Approve the Renewal of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement Dated January 18, 2016, By and Between the Board of 
Education of Butler School District # 53 and the Oak Brook Park District for a Before and 
After School Program at Brook Forest Elementary School for School Year 2017 – 2018. 
Roll Call Vote…] 

f. Tennis Center HVAC Improvements Bid [Request a Motion and a second to reject the 
deductive alternate bid of Pandecon, Inc. for Tennis Center HVAC Improvements.  Roll 
Call Vote…Then request a Motion and a second to accept the base bid of Pandecon, 
Inc. for Tennis Center HVAC Improvements and to Approve an Agreement Between the 
Oak Brook Park District and Pandecon, Inc. for a Not-to-Exceed Cost of $306,678.  Roll 
Call Vote…] 

g. 2017 Amendment to the Oak Brook Park District Executive Director Employment 
Agreement [Request a Motion and a second to approve the 2017 Amendment to the 
Oak Brook Park District Executive Director Employment Agreement as presented. Roll 
Call Vote…] 

  



 

Page 4 of 4 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  

order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  

contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Age for Active Adult Senior Membership Discount [Review and Discussion Only] 
b. Approval of a Travel Expense for Commissioner Tan’s attendance at the IAPD 

Commissioner Bootcamp Training held on May 20, 2017in the amount of $131.86 
(Requires waiving the Board Rules to Approve at this Meeting.) [Request a Motion and a 
second to waive the Board Rules to approve at this meeting the Travel Expense for 
Commissioner Tan’s attendance at the IAPD Commissioner Bootcamp Training held on 
May 20, 2017 in the amount of $131.86.  Roll Call Vote…  Then request a Motion and a 
second to approve the Travel Expense for Commissioner Tan’s attendance at the IAPD 
Commissioner Bootcamp Training held on May 20, 2017 in the amount of $131.86.  Roll 
Call Vote…] 

 

10. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON May 15, 2017, 6:30 p.m. [Announce the Next Regular 
Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners will be held on May 15, 2017 at 
6:30 p.m.] 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT [Request a motion and second to Adjourn the Meeting Voice Vote “All In 
Favor”…] 

 

 



Legal Notice Notice Of

Posted:
Category:

LEGAL NOTICE NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS 
ORDINANCE NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE Board of Commissioners of the Oak Brook Park 
District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, will conduct a public hearing regarding the proposed budget and 
appropriations ordinance for the fiscal year commencing May 1, 2017 and ending April 30, 2018, at the Oak 
Brook Park District, Family Recreation Center, 1450 Forest Gate Road, Oak Brook, Illinois, on Monday, April 
17, 2017, at 6:30 PM, during the Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners, at which time the proposed 
Budget and Appropriation Ordinance will be adopted. Copies of the proposed ordinance are available for 
public inspection at the Park District Administration Office, 1450 Forest Gate Road, Oak Brook, Illinois, during 
the normal business hours of 9:00AM - 4:30PM. Laure L. Kosey, Board Secretary Oak Brook Park District 
60523

Additional Information
19 hours ago

Public & Legal Notices 

Example: "Brown Couch"
Search Classifieds for 

All Categories 
In Category 

60611
Zip Code 

50 miles  Go
Miles around 

Place an Ad with the Chicago Tribune!

Browse Categories
For Sale
Autos Misc 
Business Opportunities 
Pets 
Stuff Wanted 
Merchandise For Sale 

Real Estate
Jobs
Powered by TheJobNetwork.com

Cars
Powered by Cars.com

Dating
Powered by eHarmony.com

Services
Announcements
Events

Home  >  Classifieds  >  Announcements  >  Public & Legal Notices

Page 1 of 1Chicago Tribune

4/6/2017http://classifieds.chicagotribune.com/classifieds/legal-notice-of-announcement-oak-brook



Page 1 of 8 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
March 20, 2017 – 6:30 p.m., Canterberry Room 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 

CALL  
 
Acting-President Carson called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.in the Recreation Center’s 
Canterberry Room.  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson and Trombetta answered “present.” 
President Knitter was absent at the time of roll call.  Also present were Laure Kosey, Executive Director; 
Dave Thommes, Director of Recreation and Facilities; Marco Salinas, Chief Financial Officer; Bob 
Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning; and Steven Adams, Park District Attorney.  
 

2. OPEN FORUM  
 

Acting-President Carson asked if there were any public comments. 
  
 There were no public comments. 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
President Knitter entered the meeting at 6:33 p.m. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to approve taking a 
Single Omnibus Vote on the Consent Agenda, as presented.  

 
 There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
 Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  

 
 There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
 Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  

  
a. APPROVAL OF March 20, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. February 20, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
ii. February 20, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes 

c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING February 28, 2017 
i. Approval of Warrant No. 597 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS  

 
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications. 

 
President Knitter asked whether any board members wished to share communications.  



Page 2 of 8 
 

 
There were no communications.  
 

b. Presentation of the Community Survey by Jarrod Scheunemann, University of Illinois  
 
Laure Kosey introduced Jarrod Scheunemann from the University of Illinois.   
 
Mr. Scheunemann made his presentation of the community survey and all related documents can 
be found in the Park District records.  
 
Mr. Scheunemann noted that hard copies of the final reports of the survey are not yet available 
but will be provided in the next couple of weeks.  
 
Mr. Scheunemann said the survey was sent to 3,300 residents in September and October of 
2016, and 483 responses were received which translates to a 15% response rate. 
 
In regard to special event participation, Commissioner Truedson suggested that the survey data 
be broken down by age group.  
 
Mr. Scheunemann said the overall satisfaction rate of resident users came in higher than the 
national average.  He also noted that one area that showed a need for improvement was theme 
party staffing and suggested that additional staff training be implemented. 
 
Mr. Scheunemann noted that the survey results showed that the respondents are not in favor of 
naming rights in relation to Park District facilities.   
 
President Knitter said that selling naming rights can be interpreted in many different ways and it 
would benefit the Park District to possibly conduct more research in this area.  
 
Mr. Scheunemann suggested conducting focus groups for senior users so that they can 
participate in developing new senior programming.  
 
In regard to many respondents wanting improvements to the Fitness Center, Mr. Scheunemann 
said it was directed more toward keeping on the cutting-edge of trends in equipment rather than 
facility expansion.   
 
Mr. Scheunemann said offering more bike and walking trails came in second behind fitness 
center improvements.  
 
Mr. Scheunemann said the survey results showed continued confusion amongst residents on 
what facilities and land belong to the Park District’s and what belong to the Sports Core.  
  
Mr. Scheunemann said the Oak Brook Park District received a very favorable response overall 
when compared to other park districts and noted that Oak Brook residents have very high 
expectations.  He suggested that the Park District invest in its staff, maintain and continue to 
improve facilities, and continue to strive to partner with local government.    
 
 
President Knitter noted that a future issue for the Park District will be when McDonalds sells its 
soccer fields because many people believe they are Park District property.    
 
Mr. Scheunemann suggested conducting focus groups for younger adults, older adults, and 
minority groups as well as a focus group concerning special events. 
 
Mr. Scheunemann said that the survey analysis found that as age increased, overall satisfaction 
increased.  



Page 3 of 8 
 

 
Upon completion of his Mr. Scheunemann’s power point presentation, President Knitter and the 
board thanked Mr. Scheunemann for his efforts and valuable information.  
 

5. STAFF RECOGNITION  
 

a. None 
 

6. REPORTS:  
 

a. Executive Director & Marketing Department Report  
 
Ms. Kosey presented her report, which can be found in the Park District records.  
 
There were no comments or questions regarding Ms. Kosey’s report.  
 

b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
 
Marco Salinas presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Mr. Salinas reviewed various financial reports which he re-formatted and asked board members 
to submit their feedback 
 
President Knitter said the new report formatting is great. The board concurred. 
 
Mr. Salinas said the full proposed budget is available for public review on the Park District 
website.  
 
There were no further comments or questions regarding Mr. Salinas’ report.  
 

c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
 
Dave Thommes presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Mr. Thommes noted that the Travel Club is currently in Sedona. 
 
Mr. Thommes also said that turf field rentals have begun and that grass field rentals will begin 
once the weather improves.  
 
Commissioner Trombetta asked Mr. Thommes whether the out-of-town Pioneer trips produce a 
profit for the Park District.  
 
Mr. Thommes confirmed that the Park District does make a small profit. 
 
There were no further comments or questions regarding Mr. Thommes’ report.  
 

d. Parks & Planning Report 

Bob Johnson presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 

Mr. Johnson said the final field light measurement reading will be tomorrow night. He noted that 
one fixture is still causing an issue, but will be repaired soon. 

There were no further comments or questions regarding Mr. Johnson’s report.  



Page 4 of 8 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution 17-0320: A Resolution Approving an Amendment to an Agreement Between the Oak 
Brook Park District and Next Generation Screen Printing & Embroidery, Inc. for Apparel Screen 
Printing and Embroidery  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Trombetta, to 
approve Resolution 17-0320: A Resolution Approving an Amendment to an Agreement Between 
the Oak Brook Park District and Next Generation Screen Printing and Embroidery, Inc. for 
Apparel Screen Printing and Embroidery.   

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
b. Tennis Center Reflective Ceiling Insulation and Installation Bid  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to accept 
the bid of Sports Interiors, Inc. for the Tennis Center Reflective Ceiling Insulation and Installation 
Project and to Approve an Agreement between the Oak Brook Park District and Sports Interiors, 
Inc., for a not-to-exceed cost of $156,300.  

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
c. Tennis Center HVAC Improvements Bid  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to reject all bids 
for the Tennis Center HVAC Improvements Bid. 

President Knitter said four bids were received but all were too expensive.   
 
Mr. Kosey said we are in direct competition with schools which offer larger contracts for work to 
be completed during the same time of the year. 
 
Mr. Thommes said we will be reducing the scope of the project which may allow us to get a better 
bid price.   
 
There was no further discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
d. Maintenance Building Force Main Improvements Project Bid  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to accept 
the bid submittal from Construction by Camco, Inc. for the Maintenance Building Force Main 
Project and to approve an Agreement between the Oak Brook Park District and Construction by 
Camco, Inc. for a not to exceed contract cost of $19,545.00.  

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  



Page 5 of 8 
 

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
e. Personnel Policy Revisions  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to 
approve the revised Personnel Policy Manual as presented. 

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
f. Tennis Center Membership Fees  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to 
approve the Tennis Center Membership Fees as presented.  

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Ordinance 17-0321: An Ordinance Approving Collateralization and Depository Agreements 

(Requires Waiving the Board Rules to Approve at This Meeting.)  

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to waive 
the Board Rules to approve at this meeting Ordinance 17-0321: An Ordinance Approving 
Collateralization and Depository Agreements.  

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

Nays:  None 

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to approve 
Ordinance 17-0321: An Ordinance Approving Collateralization and Depository Agreements  

Commissioner Carson asked for clarification of why this is needed.   

Mr. Salinas said that investment policy requires it and it is a good practice for better protection.  

Mr. Adams said it provides protection for certain securities exceeding FDIC insurance protection 
limits.  He said it basically protects the balance of an investment that exceeds the FDIC insurance 
limit by holding the excess amount with a third-party bank.  

It was also confirmed that the bank will monitor balances on a monthly basis, and will increase or 
decrease collateral coverage as needed.   

Commissioner Truedson said we must be sure that this policy continues to be followed even 
when changing banking institutions.  



Page 6 of 8 
 

Mr. Adams noted that it protects the Park District to have board approval on this issue.  

There was no further discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
Nays:  None   

b. Purchase of a Kubota L4060HSTC loader/backhoe tractor through the National Joint Powers 
Alliance Cooperative Purchasing Program (Requires Waiving the Board Rules to Approve at This 
Meeting.)  

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to waive 
the Board Rules to approve at this meeting the Purchase of a Kubota L4060HSTC 
Loader/Backhoe Tractor from the Kubota Tractor Corporation, with Russo Power Equipment as 
the local dealer, and through the District’s membership in the National Joint Powers Alliance 
Cooperative Purchasing Program.  

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to approve 
the Purchase of a Kubota L4060HSTC Loader/Backhoe Tractor from the Kubota Tractor 
Corporation, with Russo Power Equipment as the local dealer, and through the District’s 
membership in the National Joint Powers Alliance Cooperative Purchasing Program in the 
amount of $47,528.53.  

Ms. Kosey said she and staff are trying to order the tractor ASAP so that it can still be used for 
the upcoming spring season. 
 
Commissioner Trombetta asked Mr. Johnson what the tractor will be used for.   
 
Mr. Johnson said the tractor is very versatile and can be used for different kinds of projects that 
include moving materials, water main repairs, seeding, aerating, mowing and snow removals.  He 
said the list is endless.  
 
There was no further discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

 
c. Budget for Fiscal Year 2017 – 2018 The tentative Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 17-0417 

for Fiscal Year May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018 has been placed on public display for thirty days 
following the publication notice in the Doings – Oak Brook Newspaper on March 16, 2017. The 
Budget and Appropriation Ordinance encompasses all previous reviews by the Board of 
Commissioners.  The Public Hearing is scheduled to occur at the April 17, 2017 regular meeting 
of the Board of Commissioners for the purpose of receiving public comment on the Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance.  A Legal Notice of the Public Hearing will be published in the Doings – 
Oak Brook Newspaper on April 6, 2017. 
 
This matter was presented for discussion only. 
 



Page 7 of 8 
 

Mr. Salinas said there were a few changes made to the proposed budget to accommodate 
requested changes made at the budget workshop meeting last month.    
 
There were no questions or comments.  
 

d. Ordinance 17-0418: An Ordinance For Transferring Anticipated Unexpended Funds From Certain 
Appropriation Items To Other Items Of Appropriation  
 
This matter was presented for discussion only. 
 
Mr. Salinas said this is an annual process which involves transferring unexpended funds from 
various General Ledger accounts that do not need to expend all of the budgeted funds to other 
various General Ledger Accounts. 
 
There were no questions or comments.  
 

e. Resolution 17-0419: A Resolution Approving An Amendment To An Agreement Between The 
Oak Brook Park District And Classic Landscape, Ltd. For the Turf Grass Mowing Project  
 
This matter was presented for discussion only. 
 
Mr. Johnson said Classic Landscape has been providing mowing services for the last few years 
and he is very satisfied with their work.  He said this Resolution will extend their contract through 
2018.   
 
There were no questions or comments.  
 

f. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated March 10, 2008 by and between the Board 
of Education of Butler School District # 53, the Oak Brook Park District and the LaGrange Area 
Department of Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool Program At The Oak Brook Park 
District Recreation Center for School Year 2017- 2018  
 
This matter was presented for discussion only. 
 
Mr. Kosey said this is an annual renewal of the Agreement with no changes. 
 
There were no questions or comments.  
 

g. Renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated January 18, 2016, By And Between The 
Board Of Education Of Butler School District #53 And The Oak Brook Park District For A Before 
And After School Program At Brook Forest Elementary School  

 
This matter was presented for discussion only. 

 
 Mr. Thommes said this is an annual renewal with no changes made to the Agreement.  
 

Commissioner Truedson noted that he and Commissioner Tan have been out campaigning for 
the park commissioner election and that they have received consistent positive comments 
regarding the preschool program. 

  
There were no additional questions or comments.  

 
9. CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION: Convene to the Closed Session for the purpose of 

discussing and approving Closed Meeting Minutes pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21) and for the 



Page 8 of 8 
 

Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal of Specific 
Employees of the District pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act.  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to Convene to the 
Closed Session at the hour of 7:39 p.m. for the purpose of discussing and approving Closed Meeting 
Minutes pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21) and for the Appointment, Employment, Compensation, 
Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal of Specific Employees of the District pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) 
of the Open Meetings Act.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
 Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

a. Discussion and Approval of Closed Meeting Minutes, January 16, 2017 
b. Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal of 

Specific Employees of the District 
 
11. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION  
 

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to reconvene to open 
session at the hour of 7:52 p.m.  

There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
 Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  
 
12. POTENTIAL ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION   

 
There was no action taken. 
 

13. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON April 17, 2017, 6:30 p.m.  
 
President Knitter announced that the next regular meeting and the Public Hearing for the Park District’s 
FY 2017-2018 Budget will be held on April 17, 2017, 6:30 p.m.  
 

14.  ADJOURNMENT   
 

Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to adjourn at the hour 
of 7:52 p.m.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by voice vote.  
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 

 



    OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

INVESTMENTS AS OF MARCH, 2017

AMOUNT RATE MATURITY

EVERGREEN BANK 5,900,717.05$      0.65% VARIES /MONEY MARKET

5,900,717.05$      

 

ILLINOIS FUNDS 540,941.23$         

TENNIS CENTER 102,860.45           VARIES CHECKING A/C

EVERGREEN CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT 179,727.82           

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 6,724,246.55$      



OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND TREASURER'S REPORT

MARCH, 2017

CORPORATE RECREATION I.M.R.F. LIABILITY AUDIT G.O. SOCIAL SPECIAL CAPITAL FUND
FUND FUND INSURANCE BOND SECURITY RECREATION PROJECTS TOTALS

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,538,032.19$         2,603,860.08$           211,404.30$         39,037.93$         36,033.76$         54,094.38$      92,438.82$         17,133.68$         2,204,633.19$     6,796,668.33$         
Revenues

Property Taxes 266.45$                   151.49$                     33.11$                  17.26$                3.91$                  54.81$             38.26$                16.37$                 581.66$                   
Back Taxes   -                      -                           
Replacement Taxes 9,757.20                  3,071.71                    2,710.33               722.76                 1,806.89             18,068.89                
Recreation Program Fees  30,751.03                  30,751.03                
Rec/Fitness Center Fees  77,073.19                  77,073.19                
Rec/Aquatic Center Fees  51,326.43                  51,326.43                
FRC/Building Rental Fees 17,543.27                17,543.27                
Theme Party Rental Fees 1,995.00                  1,995.00                  
Recreation Center Fees 33,072.03                -                             33,072.03                
Shelter Building Rentals 4,512.50                  4,512.50                  
Field Rentals 7,552.05                  7,552.05                  
Interest 795.77                     1,144.04                    85.10                    25.41                  16.57                  28.70               40.91                  8.06                    994.86                 3,139.42                  
Transfers   -                           
Miscellaneous 67.75                       115.00                             182.75                     

 
TOTAL- REVENUES 75,562.02$              163,632.89$              2,828.54$             765.43$              20.48$                83.51$             1,886.06$           24.43$                994.86$               245,798.22$            

DISBURSEMENTS
Warrant No. 597 65,991.37$              63,798.83$                14,233.98$           18,309.79$         -$                    -$                     162,333.97$            
March, Payroll 105,710.82              137,507.89                2,134.68             8,662.50              254,015.89              
Transfers/G.O. Bond Pay -                           -                             -                           
Miscellaneous -                           

TOTAL-EXPENSES 171,702.19$            201,306.72$              14,233.98$           -$                    -$                    -$                 18,309.79$         2,134.68$           8,662.50$            416,349.86$            

ENDING BALANCE 1,441,892.02$         2,566,186.25$           199,998.86$         39,803.36$         36,054.24$         54,177.89$      76,015.09$         15,023.43$         2,196,965.55$     6,626,116.69$         

  YEAR TO DATE RECAP
.     5/1/15 THRU 3/31/16

Property Taxes 3,191,231.64$    
Back Taxes
Replacement Taxes 138,003.79         
Recreation Program Fees 806,112.56         
Rec/Fitness Center Fees 756,338.77         
Rec/Aquatic Center Fees 1,017,164.70      
FRC/Building Rental Fees 255,732.26         
Theme Party Rental Fees 11,080.00           
Recreation Center Fees 542,920.36         
Shelter Building Rentals 82,128.17           
Field Rentals 85,507.98           
Bond Proceeds 1,163,610.00      
Grant Proceeds 200,000.00         
Miscellaneous 2,200.47             
Interest Corporate 8,351.36             

Recreation 9,563.33             
I.M.R.F. 7,666.54             
Liability Insurance 505.32                
Audit 174.35                
G.O. Bond 184.40                
Social Security 331.28                
Special Recreation 251.15                
Capital Projects 5,245.72             

8,284,304.15$    



BEGINNING BALANCE 699,258.15$             
REVENUES

Tennis Fees 88,282.00
Interest 415.63                      
Grant Income -                            
Miscellaneous -                            

TOTAL REVENUES 88,697.63$               

DISBURSEMENTS
Warrant No. 585 76,891.67$               
March Payroll 65,399.94                 
Miscellaneous

TOTAL EXPENSES 142,291.61$             

ENDING BALANCE 645,664.17$             

TENNIS FEES 1,438,294.57$          
INTEREST 3,244.37                   
MISCELLANEOUS 46,143.24                 

1,487,682.18$          

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2017

Cash & Investments 645,664.17$             

MAY 1, 2016 THRU MARCH 31, 2017

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
TENNIS CENTER TREASURER'S REPORT

MARCH, 2017

YEAR TO DATE RECAP



THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD  +/- ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
BUILDING RENTALS 17,543.27$           16,551.54$          200,488.01$          209,102.11$          -4.1% 223,856.00$     
RECREATION PROGRAM RENTALS -                       -                       84,000.00              84,000.00              0.0% 112,000.00       
THEME PARTIES 1,995.00               845.00                 11,080.00              10,265.00              7.9% 16,200.00         
OPEN GYM FEES -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
DAILY FEES-RESIDENT 5,678.00               3,776.00              46,820.00              37,400.00              25.2% 45,000.00         
DAILY FEES- NON-RESIDENT 20,676.00             15,496.00            156,704.00            136,244.00            15.0% 148,500.00       
CHILD CARE FEES 2,329.00               1,794.50              21,896.50              19,375.80              13.0% 21,600.00         
LOCKER RENTALS 253.96                  153.29                 2,659.47                2,186.27                21.6% 2,520.00           
PRO SHOP SUPPLIES 102.00                  90.00                   661.29                   852.25                   -22.4% 668.41              
DISK GOLF 4.00                      -                       198.00                   292.00                   -32.2% 150.00              
COFFEE BAR 92.50                    118.50                 1,340.20                1,325.25                1.1% 1,820.00           
VENDING INCOME 2,046.57               1,961.43              19,658.62              18,924.57              3.9% 20,430.00         
NEW MEMBER ENROLLMENT FEES 1,700.00               2,300.00              22,475.00              20,700.00              8.6% 15,000.00         
EFT ADMINISTRATION FEE 25.00                    -                       125.00                   611.00                   -79.5% 600.00              
MEMBER ON HOLD FEES 60.00                    150.00                 3,120.00                3,001.00                4.0% 3,600.00           
CASH OVER/UNDER -                       -                       12.83                     (81.50)                   -115.7% -                    
OVERHEAD REV FROM OTHER  DEPARTMENTS -                       -                       238,191.75            238,191.75            0.0% 317,589.00       
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 105.00                  25.00                   480.00                   325.00                   47.7% 120.00              
TOTAL REVENUES 52,610.30$           43,261.26$          809,910.67$          782,714.50$          3.5% 929,653.41$     

EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES/FULL TIME 17,324.80$           14,666.66$          195,714.66$          169,590.24$          15.4% 220,939.00$     
PERSONNEL/PART TIME CUSTODIAL 8,979.07               7,079.98              94,553.48              80,230.46              17.9% 123,958.12       
PERSONNEL/PART TIME FRONT DESK 8,071.67               8,085.28              91,987.27              108,056.53            -14.9% 134,881.59       
PERSONNEL/PART TIME OPEN GYM -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PERSONNEL/PART TIME CHILD CARE 3,228.81               3,220.78              36,556.16              35,618.77              2.6% 40,706.25         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME EVENING SUPVR 1,540.00               1,536.50              17,261.98              9,738.24                77.3% 21,112.00         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME ACCT & INFO TECH -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PERSONNEL/PART TIME PRIVATE RENTALS 187.97                  181.78                 2,069.57                1,435.41                44.2% 2,600.00           
PERSONNEL/PART TIME THEME PARTIES -                       197.13                 644.80                   1,776.71                -63.7% 2,340.00           
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 7,157.72               5,042.58              74,400.64              72,281.26              2.9% 92,913.36         
VEHICLE EXPENSES -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 100.00              
GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSES 960.18                  921.07                 9,026.81                6,469.05                39.5% 10,530.00         
PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS 617.50                  -                       662.50                   165.00                   301.5% 500.00              
EDUCATIONAL TRAINING -                       33.03                   4,622.35                3,372.47                37.1% 5,623.00           
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -                       -                       968.38                   593.00                   63.3% 608.00              
POSTAGE 6.59                      -                       238.99                   365.00                   -34.5% 500.00              
TELEPHONE 253.00                  146.00                 2,660.05                2,847.04                -6.6% 4,188.00           
OFFICE COMMODITIES 241.39                  302.33                 3,750.47                2,680.17                39.9% 3,700.00           
ALCOHOL PERMITS/ PDRMA 249.65                  -                       321.00                   -                        0.0% 313.60              
CONTRACT SERVICES 2,390.49               6,335.93              63,107.10              83,260.46              -24.2% 75,961.56         
UTILITIES 7,499.57               8,121.80              74,110.09              72,652.54              2.0% 88,060.00         
THEME PARTY SUPPLIES (77.12)                  456.33                 3,571.68                3,640.97                -1.9% 3,560.00           
MAINTENANCE COMMODITIES 3,202.22               3,231.14              33,389.87              36,964.29              -9.7% 31,894.92         
BUILDING EQUIPMENT 1,429.98               2,253.50              13,531.56              21,144.27              -36.0% 19,450.00         
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 2,267.23               2,239.99              17,721.52              17,911.04              -1.1% 16,416.00         
TOTAL EXPENSES 65,530.72$           64,051.81$          740,870.93$          730,792.92$          1.4% 900,855.40$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (12,920.42)$         (20,790.55)$         69,039.74$            51,921.58$            33.0% 28,798.01$       

ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
FAMILY RECREATION CENTER
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

MARCH, 2017



         OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
         FITNESS CENTER

YTD +/-
THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR PRIOR ANNUAL

REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE YEAR BUDGET
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS 32,988.77$           25,865.00$          381,090.46$          360,025.36$          5.9% 402,500.00       
DAILY FITNESS FEES -                       -                       -                         -                        #DIV/0! -                    
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS PREMIERE-RESIDENT 2,617.89               1,915.00              15,105.97              12,983.69              16.3% 18,516.00         
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS PREMIERE- N/R 1,492.72               1,033.00              8,792.50                8,343.38                5.4% 6,426.00           
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS  COMBO- RESIDENT 9,230.68               5,860.41              66,675.15              56,470.19              18.1% 70,988.00         
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS  COMBO- N/R 10,029.31             9,109.90              72,713.97              67,968.50              7.0% 70,343.00         
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS  TENNIS COM MEM RES 1,371.55               1,022.55              7,526.17                6,416.51                17.3% 4,197.00           
FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS  TENNIS COM MEM NR 1,169.44               1,039.00              6,648.58                8,847.36                -24.9% 2,660.00           
SUMMER FITNESS MEMBERSHIPS -                       -                       7,448.70                5,915.00                25.9% 4,216.00           
FITNESS CLUB ADULT EXERCISE 689.13                  1,546.99              14,127.79              13,644.60              3.5% 15,930.00         
TOWEL RENTALS 101.00                  126.00                 8,737.00                8,804.00                -0.8% 9,500.00           
TRACK PROGRAMS 1,605.00               720.00                 7,130.00                5,260.00                35.6% 5,066.53           
PERSONAL TRAINING 15,777.70             7,418.84              149,980.73            117,387.56            27.8% 184,909.00       
FITNESS ASSESSMENTS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PICKLE BALL DROP IN -                       -                       -                         121.00                   0.0% 100.00              
SOCIALS/SPECIAL EVENTS -                       -                       4,455.00                6,135.00                -27.4% 6,583.00           
SPONSORSHIPS -                       -                       2,000.00                12,000.00              -83.3% 12,000.00         
RISK MANAGEMENT AWARDS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL REVENUES 77,073.19$           55,656.69$          752,432.02$          690,322.15$          9.0% 813,934.53$     

EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES/FULL TIME 5,313.60$             5,060.84$            59,685.02$            59,220.97$            0.8% 66,390.40         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME FLOOR 3,789.31$             3,968.11              44,875.52              45,395.87              -1.1% 53,790.00         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME ADULT PROGRAMS 9,281.26               8,344.64              101,237.74            91,869.52              19.6% 110,883.62       
PERSONNEL/PART TIME PERSONAL TRAINING 9,394.83               9,786.23              109,902.04            128,845.87            -14.7% 152,497.33       
PERSONNEL/PART TIME FITNESS ASSESSMENT -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PERSONNEL/PART TIME SPECIAL EVENTS 239.60                  589.76                 1,322.35                2,152.78                -38.6% 1,440.00           
PERSONNEL/PART TIME PRGM COORDINATOR 941.33                  1,253.08              8,602.44                11,266.46              -23.6% 12,195.04         
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 1,809.13               1,699.40              19,654.97              16,922.53              16.1% 23,240.63         
VECHICLE EXPENSES -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 100.00              
GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSES 960.18                  1,008.12              12,046.99              10,946.10              10.1% 10,030.00         
EDUCATIONAL TRAINING 200.00                  -                       3,754.27                2,354.04                59.5% 4,500.00           
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -                       269.00                 302.46                   317.46                   -4.7% 375.00              
SPECIAL EVENTS 409.98                  203.50                 519.98                   1,084.50                -52.1% 2,794.00           
POSTAGE -                       -                       600.32                   923.32                   -35.0% 1,750.00           
TELEPHONE (1,428.02)             35.00                   1,203.62                1,192.82                0.9% 1,860.00           
OFFICE COMMODITIES 155.21                  33.80                   854.94                   732.82                   16.7% 1,300.00           
MISC. VISA/MASTERCARD EXPENSE 1,934.39               935.03                 17,295.48              9,478.62                82.5% 17,964.00         
TOWEL SERVICES 1,532.48               -                       9,085.28                17,097.60              -46.9% 9,760.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES-FACILITY RENTALS -                       -                       21,750.00              21,750.00              0.0% 29,000.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES 235.00                  479.00                 12,221.43              4,800.42                154.6% 6,000.00           
FITNESS EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES -                       1,254.73              4,695.91                3,665.29                28.1% 5,050.00           
UTILITIES 5,999.62               5,900.71              59,288.02              56,452.10              5.0% 70,450.00         
PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS -                       -                       112.50                   487.35                   -76.9% 750.00              
FIRST AID SUPPLIES -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 50.00                
COMMODITIES -                       70.00                   310.44                   413.18                   -24.9% 500.00              
EQUIPMENT/NON-CAPITAL 276.35                  1,064.62              6,813.23                15,838.17              -57.0% 7,000.00           
OVERHEAD ALLOCATION -                       -                       56,882.25              56,882.25              0.0% 75,843.00         
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL EXPENSES 41,044.25$           41,955.57$          553,017.20$          560,090.04$          -1.3% 665,513.02$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES 36,028.94$           13,701.12$          199,414.82$          130,232.11$          53.1% 148,421.51$     

                          ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
                        MARCH, 2017



OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER

        TEN  MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
    MARCH, 2017

YTD +/-
THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR PRIOR ANNUAL

REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE YEAR BUDGET
RENTALS/GROUP & PARTY 15,451.00$           17,927.50$          169,041.50$          152,951.00$          10.5% 154,910.00$     
RENTALS/RECREATION PROGRAMS 1,301.00               1,409.00              9,079.00                8,874.00                2.3% 7,620.00           
UNIFORM REVENUE -                       -                       247.00                   -                        100.0% 200.00              
MEMBERSHIPS 14,148.11             9,084.99              138,140.37            133,604.73            3.4% 160,020.00       
SUMMER AQUATIC MEMBERSHIPS -                       89.86                   35,671.66              20,782.61              71.6% 25,162.00         
AQUATIC MEMBERSHIPS PREMIERE -RESIDENT -                       -                       4,936.70                4,509.35                9.5% 6,000.00           
AQUATIC MEMBERSHIPS PREMIERE -NR -                       -                       3,196.77                4,076.93                -21.6% 5,600.00           
AQUATIC MEMBERSHIPS COMBO RESIDENT -                       -                       32,471.52              28,989.10              12.0% 44,000.00         
AQUATIC MEMBERSHIPS COMBO NR (68.40)                  -                       35,086.21              33,388.67              5.1% 48,000.00         
AQUATIC MEMBERSHIP COMBO TENNIS RES 204.57                  132.00                 2,291.19                1,449.00                58.1% 1,000.00           
AQUATIC MEMBERSHIP COMBO TENNIS NR 504.70                  133.00                 5,047.44                3,413.55                47.9% 2,000.00           
DAILY PASS 594.00                  574.00                 3,128.00                4,300.00                -27.3% 2,400.00           
RISK MANAGEMENT AWARDS -                       900.00                 3,400.00                3,450.00                -1.4% 4,000.00           
TOTAL REVENUES 32,134.98$           30,250.35$          441,737.36$          399,788.94$          10.5% 460,912.00$     

EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES/FULL TIME 8,977.60$             23,001.10$          102,344.53$          90,923.73$            12.6% 115,860.36$     
PERSONNEL/PART TIME 15,124.48             15,283.19            187,563.65            191,035.62            -1.8% 223,175.73       
PERSONNEL/PART TIME MANAGERS 3,842.60               4,648.46              45,437.93              54,591.71              -16.8% 68,323.50         
PERSONNEL/ PART TIME MAINTENANCE 893.13                  (14,770.18)           11,402.78              9,487.63                20.2% 12,620.00         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME/HOSTESS STAFF 1,940.44               2,039.75              17,527.73              13,375.59              31.0% 16,110.00         
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 1,822.13               5,090.81              28,598.08              37,111.20              -22.9% 47,914.12         
VEHICLE EXPENSES -                       20.00                   224.62                   326.88                   -31.3% 700.00              
GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSES 960.19                  834.03                 8,961.11                6,171.96                45.2% 9,554.00           
PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
EDUCATIONAL TRAINING 150.00                  687.64                 5,857.53                7,900.18                -25.9% 15,300.00         
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -                       -                       1,113.42                1,317.92                -15.5% 1,480.00           
SUPPLIES/I.D. CARDS -                       70.00                   529.82                   905.98                   -41.5% 1,300.00           
PROGRAM EXPENSES 10.00                    52.84                   1,027.98                538.93                   90.7% 2,000.00           
PRIVATE RENTAL EXPENSES 968.47                  1,469.67              15,121.59              14,536.96              4.0% 16,300.00         
POSTAGE 22.05                    11.40                   555.41                   934.76                   -40.6% 1,000.00           
BUSINESS LINE CHARGES 178.64                  130.00                 2,320.08                2,026.81                14.5% 2,700.00           
OFFICE COMMODITIES 55.36                    33.80                   992.58                   1,511.04                -34.3% 1,744.00           
MISC. VISA/MASTERCARD EXPENSES 1,934.40               1,008.09              17,295.53              10,287.34              68.1% 18,000.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES 508.07                  436.00                 23,624.15              20,584.50              14.8% 53,500.00         
UTILITIES 10,499.37             11,967.21            103,753.95            103,498.94            0.2% 123,287.00       
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,526.76               2,191.77              32,979.84              27,313.39              20.7% 43,800.00         
POOL EQUIPMENT/NON-CAPITAL -                       -                       4,199.41                487.84                   760.8% 10,000.00         
OVERHEAD EXPENSE ALLOCATION -                       -                       56,882.25              56,882.25              0.0% 75,843.00         
MISCELLANEOUS 636.05                  100.00                 3,862.29                192.00                   1911.6% 6,125.00           
TOTAL EXPENSES 50,049.74$           54,305.58$          672,176.26$          651,943.16$          3.1% 866,636.71$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (17,914.76)$         (24,055.23)$         (230,438.90)$         (252,154.22)$        -8.8% (405,724.71)$    



                   OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
                     FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER CENTER/SWIM PROGRAMS

                    ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
                  MARCH, 2017

THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD  +/- ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
YOUTH CONTRACTED REVENUE -$                     40.18$                 537.62$                 40.18$                   1238.0% 550.00$            
ADULT CONTRACTED REVENUE 871.65                  18,806.11            77,981.66              82,530.66              -5.5% 79,656.00         
CHILDRENS SWIM PROGRAMS 9,678.03               11,808.87            258,513.98            280,035.27            -7.7% 269,636.53       
ADULT SWIM PROGRAMS 766.51                  (17,692.01)           7,647.81                16,100.06              -52.5% 13,998.00         
CHILDRENS PRIVATE LESSONS 3,645.40               7,479.78              162,471.98            204,623.12            -20.6% 200,080.00       
CHILDRENS SWIM TEAM 2,430.00               3,066.90              50,123.64              49,949.61              0.3% 66,030.00         
ADULT SWIM TEAM 268.86                  114.10                 10,755.08              10,949.67              -1.8% 11,241.00         
EVENT REVENUES 1,531.00               1,582.00              4,628.00                3,974.00                16.5% 3,325.00           
SPONSORSHIP -                       -                       3,125.00                2,125.00                47.1% 3,000.00           

19,191.45$           25,205.93$          575,784.77$          650,327.57$          -11.5% 647,516.53$     
EXPENSES
PERSONNEL/PART TIME CHILD PROGRAMS 5,224.01$             5,657.42$            68,541.17$            74,909.85$            -8.5% 82,871.25$       
PERSONNEL/PART TIME ADULT PROGRAMS 4,034.47               3,885.45              38,543.86              38,795.79              -0.6% 48,271.00         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME SWIM PROGRAMS 2,809.16               2,862.33              27,411.42              29,615.44              -7.4% 27,476.00         
PERSONNEL/PART TIME PRIVATE LESSONS 6,616.87               8,025.66              69,989.15              84,086.05              -16.8% 98,224.50         
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 3,880.50               5,347.50              50,242.11              57,964.64              -13.3% 60,480.00         
PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS -                       -                       -                         100.00                   -100.0% 100.00              
SWIM TEAM EXPENSES 19.78                    528.39                 3,207.79                4,200.32                -23.6% 7,040.00           
PROGRAM MATERIALS 196.55                  65.28                   1,905.39                2,296.39                -17.0% 4,115.00           
OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES-UNIFORMS -                       -                       797.89                   367.50                   117.1% 1,500.00           
TOTAL EXPENSES 22,781.34$           26,372.03$          260,638.78$          292,335.98$          -10.8% 330,077.75$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (3,589.89)$           (1,166.10)$           315,145.99$          357,991.59$          -12.0% 317,438.78$     



THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD +/- ANNUAL
CENTRAL PARK MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
REVENUES
FIELD RENTALS 7,552.05$             6,924.05$            86,190.28$            90,183.07$            -4.4% 100,000.00$     

EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES / FULL TIME MAINT. 20,171.21$           12,478.73$          233,208.10$          155,396.07$          50.1% 264,955.20$     
PERSONNEL / PART TIME MAINTENANCE -                       -                       13,165.30              12,012.59              9.6% 22,660.00         
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 6,001.37               4,396.99              67,015.11              44,775.87              49.7% 95,531.30         
WORKSHOPS 254.24                  526.98                 5,449.14                1,334.48                308.3% 6,175.00           
DUES & SUBCRIPTIONS 25.00                    -                       378.00                   -                        100.0% 805.00              
MOBILE CHARGES 192.61                  91.86                   1,372.94                1,317.21                4.2% 1,680.00           
HOSPITALITY 81.44                    -                       184.34                   401.79                   -54.1% 500.00              
CONTRACTS / PARK  MAINTENANCE 2,205.00               1,140.00              79,651.83              78,194.01              1.9% 87,590.00         
UTILITIES / PARK MAINTENANCE 1,165.54               1,831.69              14,349.27              14,855.65              -3.4% 19,112.00         
COMMODITIES / PARK MAINTENANCE 3,189.99               15,361.73            83,253.18              70,329.26              18.4% 92,546.00         
EQUIPMENT / PARK MAINTENANCE 257.93                  -                       14,036.23              21,487.18              -34.7% 20,135.00         
SAFETY -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0%
OTHER MAINTENANCE &  REPAIRS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    

33,544.33$           35,827.98$          512,063.44$          400,104.11$          28.0% 611,689.50$     

SADDLEBROOK PARK
CONTRACTS / PARK  MAINTENANCE -$                     -$                     5,550.00$              8,380.00$              -33.8% 12,135.00$       
COMMODITIES / PARK MAINTENANCE -                       -                       967.48                   562.67                   71.9% 3,750.00           
EQUIPMENT / PARK MAINTENANCE 390.00                  -                       747.67                   1,896.01                -60.6% 2,000.00           
OTHER MAINTENANCE &  REPAIRS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL EXPENSES 390.00$                -$                     7,265.15$              10,838.68$            -33.0% 17,885.00$       

FOREST GLEN
CONTRACTS / PARK  MAINTENANCE -$                     -$                     11,624.00$            9,746.00$              19.3% 14,804.00$       
UTILITIES / PARK MAINTENANCE 7.77                      34.51                   3,873.97                3,781.20                2.5% 5,901.00           
COMMODITIES / PARK MAINTENANCE -                       -                       3,680.84                3,359.62                9.6% 3,780.00           
EQUIPMENT / PARK MAINTENANCE -                       -                       408.34                   4,599.51                -91.1% 3,100.00           
OTHER MAINTENANCE &  REPAIRS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL EXPENSES 7.77$                    34.51$                 19,587.15$            21,486.33$            -8.8% 27,585.00$       

CHILLEM PARK
CONTRACTS / PARK  MAINTENANCE -$                     -$                     1,350.00$              1,540.00$              -12.3% 3,330.00$         
COMMODITIES / PARK MAINTENANCE -                       -                       1,330.00                837.80                   58.7% 2,050.00           
EQUIPMENT / PARK MAINTENANCE -                       -                       68.20                     1,208.11                -94.4% 500.00              
OTHER MAINTENANCE &  REPAIRS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL EXPENSES -$                     -$                     2,748.20$              3,585.91$              -23.4% 5,880.00$         

CONTRACTS / PARK  MAINTENANCE -$                     -$                     29,497.55$            36,860.20$            -20.0% 38,500.00$       

TOTAL PARK  EXPENSES 33,942.10$           35,862.49$          571,161.49$          472,875.23$          20.8% 701,539.50$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (26,390.05)$         (28,938.44)$         (484,971.21)$         (382,692.16)$        -26.7% (601,539.50)$    

DEAN PROPERTY REVENUES
SPONSORSHIP -$                     -$                     3,000.00$              -$                      100.0% -$                  

DEAN PROPERTY EXPENSES
CONTRACTS /  MAINTENANCE (345.00)$              -$                     4,056.60$              2,768.44$              46.5% 4,304.00$         
UTILITIES /  MAINTENANCE 32.01                    -                       193.16                   -                        0.0% -                    
COMMODITIES /  MAINTENANCE -                       -                       3,888.42                1,198.62                224.4% 4,000.00           
OTHER MAINTENANCE &  REPAIRS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL EXPENSES (312.99)$              -$                     8,138.18$              3,967.06$              105.1% 8,304.00$         

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES 312.99$                -$                     (5,138.18)$             (3,967.06)$            29.5% (8,304.00)$        

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
PARKS

ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
MARCH, 2017



                          CPW 

THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD  +/- ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
BUILDING  RENTALS 3,717.50$             2,862.65$            66,525.67$            64,253.16$            3.5% 66,300.00$       
GAZEBO  RENTALS -                       500.00                 1,670.00                1,650.00                1.2% 900.00              
ALCOHOL PERMITS 795.00                  1,088.00              13,932.50              10,293.00              35.4% 9,540.00           
TOTAL REVENUES 4,512.50$             4,450.65$            82,128.17$            76,196.16$            7.8% 76,740.00$       

EXPENSES
PERSONNEL / PART TIME 679.88$                400.95$               7,835.04$              8,251.78$              -5.1% 9,360.00$         
INSURANCE & BENEFITS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TELEPHONE 85.75                    36.00                   995.98                   991.23                   0.5% 1,200.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES 264.70                  311.74                 7,015.57                9,613.74                -27.0% 12,015.88         
UTILITIES 2,532.10               (464.12)                9,489.06                5,753.19                64.9% 9,100.00           
COMMODITIES /  MAINTENANCE 13.23                    211.02                 673.85                   4,308.71                -84.4% 2,624.64           
NON-CAPITAL FURNITURE &  EQUIPMENT 1,704.31               -                       9,033.62                2,710.00                233.3% 18,400.00         
MISCELLANEOUS  EXP. ALCOHOL PERMITS -                       -                       875.00                   175.00                   0.0% 6,300.00           
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,279.97$             495.59$               35,918.12$            31,803.65$            12.9% 59,000.52$       

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (767.47)$              3,955.06$            46,210.05$            44,392.51$            4.1% 17,739.48$       

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
MARCH, 2017



CHILDRENS PROGRAMS THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD +/- ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
CHILDRENS  ARTS & CRAFTS -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                      0.0% -$                  
CHILDRENS  ATHLETICS 4,667.50               560.35                 52,857.05              53,945.89              0.0% 63,675.00         
CHILDRENS  ACTIVITIES -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PLAYGROUND CAMPS-SPORTS CAMP (2,467.35)             1,949.83              25,754.06              24,695.51              0.0% 24,470.00         
CHILDRENS  DANCE -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CHILDRENS  PERFORMING ARTS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CHILDRENS  PROGRAMS SAFETY -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CHILDRENS  PROGRAMS  TEENS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
TOTAL REVENUES 2,200.15$             2,510.18$            78,611.11$            78,641.40$            0.0% 88,145.00$       

EXPENSES
PROGRAM PERSONNEL -PART TIME 5,521.76$             2,962.90$            23,552.20$            29,247.56$            -19.5% 36,212.15$       
CONTRACTUAL INSTRUCTION 1,072.50               780.00                 17,960.95              17,803.00              0.9% 20,590.01         
CONTRACT SERVICES-EQUIPMENT RENTAL -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CONTRACT SERVICES-FACILITY RENTALS -                       -                       15,750.00              15,750.00              0.0% 21,000.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-ADMISSIONS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CONTRACT SERVICES-TRANSPORTATION -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PROGRAM MATERIALS 477.05                  437.50                 1,020.77                628.69                   62.4% 2,000.00           
COMMODITIES-FOOD 21.93                    -                       21.93                     25.28                     -13.3% 200.00              
COMMODITIES-SHIRTS -                       -                       1,725.25                -                        0.0% 2,500.00           
TOTAL EXPENSES 7,093.24$             4,180.40$            60,031.10$            63,454.53$            -5.4% 82,502.16$       

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (4,893.09)$           (1,670.22)$           18,580.01$            15,186.87$            22.3% 5,642.84$         

EARLY CHILDHOOD PROGRAMS
REVENUES
EC ENRICHMENT 1,055.61$             (154.94)$              29,290.38$            26,413.13$            10.9% 26,884.00$       
EC PRESCHOOL MORNING 12,251.46             -                       126,940.38            127,566.05            -0.5% 121,794.00       
EC PRESCHOOL FULL DAY 7,292.52               -                       78,404.12              50,563.77              55.1% 78,540.00         
EC BEGINNING  PRESCHOOL 994.33                  -                       28,271.97              33,921.32              -16.7% 30,905.00         
EC CONTRACT PROGRAM 1,017.50               1,833.60              15,838.72              13,996.04              13.2% 14,800.00         
EC SPONSORSHIP -                       -                       3,200.00                1,200.00                166.7% 1,200.00           
TOTAL REVENUES 22,611.42$           1,678.66$            281,945.57$          253,660.31$          11.2% 274,123.00$     

EXPENSES
PROGRAM PERSONNEL PART TIME 14,687.27$           15,302.13$          141,144.56$          125,666.14$          12.3% 153,198.12$     
CONTRACTUAL INSTRUCTION -                       3,279.87              10,589.54              7,448.67                42.2% 12,800.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES FACILITY RENTAL -                       -                       27,750.00              27,750.00              0.0% 37,000.00         
PROGRAM MATERIALS 171.74                  510.24                 3,995.47                3,599.69                11.0% 4,915.00           
COMMODITIES - FOOD -                       -                       1,590.99                1,219.95                30.4% 1,600.00           
COMMODITIES -SHIRTS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 600.00              
NON-CAPITAL SMALL EQUIPMENT -                       -                       5,663.90                3,128.69                81.0% 5,000.00           
TOTAL EXPENSES 14,859.01$           19,092.24$          190,734.46$          168,813.14$          13.0% 215,113.12$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES 7,752.41$             (17,413.58)$         91,211.11$            84,847.17$            7.5% 59,009.88$       

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
RECREATION PROGRAMS

ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
MARCH, 2017



THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD +/- ANNUAL
YOUTH PROGRAMS MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
REVENUES
YOUTH ACTIVITIES (98.00)$                -$                     (107.00)$                387.00$                 -127.6% 560.00$            
YOUTH PERFORMING ARTS (148.00)                648.00                 3,038.00                810.00                   275.1% 1,944.00           
YOUTH AFTER SCHOOL 935.82                  -                       36,536.90              -                        0.0% 31,590.00         
YOUTH  CAMP PEE WEE -                       -                       30,870.00              32,296.25              -4.4% 27,158.00         
YOUTH  PLAYGROUND CAMP -                       -                       91,742.57              79,836.10              14.9% 72,035.00         
YOUTH TEEN CAMP -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
YOUTH BEFORE & AFTER CAMP -                       -                       3,800.00                5,261.50                -27.8% 3,440.00           
YOUTH SPECIALTY CAMP 359.40                  1,930.40              7,526.15                3,958.90                90.1% 4,392.00           
YOUTH CONTRACTED PROGRAMS 24.00                    129.00                 (83.00)                    129.00                   -164.3% 990.00              
YOUTH SPONSORSHIP -                       -                       3,500.00                3,500.00                0.0% 2,000.00           
TOTAL REVENUES 1,073.22$             2,707.40$            176,823.62$          126,178.75$          40.1% 144,109.00$     

EXPENSES
PROGRAM PERSONNEL 2,531.11$             78.90$                 76,682.46$            55,856.19$            37.3% 86,915.50$       
CONTRACTUAL INSTRUCTION -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CONTRACT SERVICES FACILITY RENTAL -                       -                       10,500.00              10,500.00              0.0% 14,000.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES ADMISSIONS -                       -                       5,532.59                6,492.93                -14.8% 5,850.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES TRANSPORTATION -                       -                       3,420.00                3,572.42                -4.3% 3,900.00           
PROGRAM MATERIALS 330.60                  -                       4,955.14                2,389.40                107.4% 5,970.00           
COMMODITIES - FOOD -                       -                       2,532.75                1,546.30                63.8% 3,500.00           
COMMODITIES - SHIRTS -                       -                       395.00                   341.00                   15.8% 3,600.00           

2,861.71$             78.90$                 104,017.94$          80,698.24$            28.9% 123,735.50$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (1,788.49)$           2,628.50$            72,805.68$            45,480.51$            60.1% 20,373.50$       

ADULT PROGRAMS
REVENUES
ADULTS- ARTS & CRAFTS -$                     -$                     4,218.00$              3,448.32$              22.3% 5,546.00$         
ADULTS- PROGRAMS 805.08                  821.15                 37,888.74              36,639.75              3.4% 38,540.00         
ADULTS- DANCE 157.50                  382.50                 7,390.00                9,520.50                -22.4% 11,070.00         
ADULTS- DINNER & ENTERTAINMENT 90.00                     -                        -                    
ADULTS- SAFETY -                       -                       (90.00)                    -                        0.0% 480.00              
ADULTS- SPONSORSHIP -                       -                       2,350.00                -                        0.0%
TOTAL REVENUES 962.58$                1,203.65$            51,846.74$            49,608.57$            4.5% 55,636.00$       

EXPENSES
PROGRAM PERSONNEL -PART TIME 760.65$                758.28$               7,078.93$              5,967.18$              18.6% 12,343.49$       
CONTRACTUAL INSTRUCTION 2,460.00               3,363.00              25,020.00              23,013.30              8.7% 30,249.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-FACILITY RENTALS -                       -                       3,672.03                3,750.00                -2.1% 5,000.00           
PROGRAM MATERIALS -                       77.41                   2,459.98                2,996.84                -17.9% 3,250.00           
COMMODITIES-SHIRTS -                       -                       -                         90.00                     -100.0% 800.00              
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,220.65$             4,198.69$            38,230.94$            35,817.32$            6.7% 51,642.49$       

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (2,258.07)$           (2,995.04)$           13,615.80$            13,791.25$            -1.3% 3,993.51$         

PIONEER PROGRAMS
REVENUES
PROGRAMS-EXERCISE -$                     535.00$               4,400.00$              5,810.00$              -24.3% 5,400.00$         
PIONEER CLASSES -                       -                       23.77                     544.00                   -95.6% 300.00              
PROGRAMS-LUNCHEONS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 400.00              
PROGRAMS-SPONSORSHIPS -                       100.00                 600.00                   200.00                   200.0% 200.00              
PROGRAMS-TRIPS 757.00                  (114.00)                67,834.00              70,277.50              -3.5% 76,100.00         
MULTI- DAY TRIP -LODGING -                       446.00                 43,547.00              63,899.00              -31.9% 88,000.00         
TOTAL REVENUES 757.00$                967.00$               116,404.77$          140,730.50$          -17.3% 170,400.00$     

EXPENSES
PROGRAM PERSONNEL -PART TIME -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                      0.0% -$                  
PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS -                       -                       2,035.00                1,889.00                7.7% 3,480.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES-PERFORMERS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 250.00              
CONTRACT SERVICES-FACILITY RENTALS -                       -                       2,250.00                2,250.00                0.0% 3,000.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES-ADMISSIONS 764.03                  323.50                 18,397.23              26,466.00              -30.5% 30,000.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-TRANSPORTATION 884.00                  1,220.00              14,508.00              16,040.25              -9.6% 18,550.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-CATERING -                       -                       -                         524.00                   -100.0% 600.00              
CONTRACT SERVICES-TRIPS -                       424.00                 11,618.89              9,122.71                27.4% 9,500.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES-RESTAURANTS -                       595.00                 11,212.41              11,420.91              -1.8% 17,000.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-PIONEER CLASSES 43.52                    -                       120.18                   267.00                   -55.0% 200.00              
CONTRACT SERVICES-OTHER MULTI- DAY -                       427.48                 41,948.00              57,836.82              -27.5% 86,500.00         
PROGRAM MATERIALS 8.99                      18.07                   477.12                   278.41                   71.4% 601.00              
COMMODITIES-FOODS -                       -                       178.10                   24.00                     642.1% 525.00              
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,700.54$             3,008.05$            102,744.93$          126,119.10$          -18.5% 170,206.00$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (943.54)$              (2,041.05)$           13,659.84$            14,611.40$            -6.5% 194.00$            

ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES
MARCH, 2017

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
RECREATION PROGRAMS



                    OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
                              SPECIAL EVENTS
ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES

  MARCH, 2017

THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR PRIOR ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE YEAR BUDGET
SPECIAL EVENTS 480.00$                360.00$               54,979.93$            40,200.31$            36.8% 47,815.00$       
SPONSORSHIPS -                       -                       20,200.00              18,050.00              11.9% 27,700.00         
TOTAL REVENUES 480.00$                360.00$               75,179.93$            58,250.31$            29.1% 75,515.00$       

EXPENSES
PROGRAM PERSONNEL -PART TIME 74.00$                  177.14$               4,571.85$              5,039.53$              -9.3% 6,395.00$         
CONTRACTUAL INSTRUCTION -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% -                    
CONTRACT SERVICES-PERFORMERS -                       168.85                 15,312.53              14,453.24              5.9% 17,700.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-EQUIPMENT RENTAL -                       85.80                   10,335.05              8,543.35                21.0% 11,600.00         
CONTRACT SERVICES-FACILITY RENTAL -                       -                       2,250.00                2,561.00                -12.1% 3,000.00           
CONTRACT SERVICES-TRANSPORTATION -                       -                       750.00                   750.00                   0.0% 750.00              
PROGRAM MATERIALS 491.15                  983.35                 18,663.78              16,422.95              13.6% 19,540.00         
COMMODITIES-ARTS & CRAFTS -                       -                       1,141.21                713.93                   59.8% 1,850.00           
COMMODITIES-FOOD 109.11                  108.00                 2,908.25                2,886.86                0.7% 3,715.00           
COMMODITIES-SHIRTS -                       -                       7,471.00                4,717.77                58.4% 10,750.00         
COMMODITIES-PRIZES 100.00                  -                       1,027.78                318.65                   222.5% 1,170.00           
TOTAL EXPENSES 774.26$                1,523.14$            64,431.45$            56,407.28$            14.2% 76,470.00$       

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (294.26)$              (1,163.14)$           10,748.48$            1,843.03$              483.2% (955.00)$           



                                  OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT

THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD +/- ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YEAR BUDGET
BROCHURE ADVERTISEMENTS 2,333.33$             1,500.00$            12,383.33$            8,625.00$              43.6% 6,000.00$         
SPONSORSHIP 333.33                  -                       14,583.33              22,000.00              -33.7% 25,000.00         
UNIFORM REVENUE -                       -                       1,457.00                -                        0.0% 500.00              
TOTAL REVENUES 2,666.66$             1,500.00$            28,423.66$            30,625.00$            -7.2% 31,500.00$       

EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES  / FULL TIME 12,422.40$           8,069.61$            143,952.58$          137,054.46$          5.0% 159,325.08$     
PERSONNEL / PART TIME -                       -                       1,750.21                -                        0.0% 2,109.00           
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 3,722.63               1,430.90              25,475.73              24,313.20              4.8% 44,776.86         
POSTAGE -SPECIAL MAILINGS -                       -                       11,751.00              10,713.91              9.7% 12,125.00         
HOSPITALITY -                       -                       1,182.37                638.82                   85.1% 3,100.00           
UNIFORMS -                       1,108.20              12,226.65              10,654.08              14.8% 15,595.00         
PUBLIC RELATIONS -                       -                       6,227.02                -                        0.0%
ADVERTISEMENTS 100.00                  97.73                   9,121.85                10,029.86              -9.1% 14,850.00         
GENERAL MARKETING / PROMOTIONS -                       300.00                 6,139.71                6,990.61                -12.2% 9,310.00           
GENERAL MARKETING / SPONSORSHIP -                       -                       439.91                   694.51                   -36.7% 1,250.00           
IN-HOUSE PRINTED MATERIALS -                       -                       1,070.31                1,383.91                -22.7% 2,500.00           
PRINTED MATERIALS -                       -                       9,297.59                10,232.20              -9.1% 11,650.00         
SEASONAL PROGRAM  BROCHURE -                       4,061.00              17,510.00              21,021.00              -16.7% 35,711.00         
EDUCATION  /  TRAINING -                       271.90                 2,521.42                2,007.35                25.6% 3,475.00           
GIFT CARD EXPENSE -                       -                       -                         -                        0.0% 1.00                  
MATERIALS  SOFTWARE -                       -                       3,022.00                2,911.03                3.8% 3,152.00           
NON-CAPITAL FURNITURE &  EQUIPMENT -                       73.11                   14,068.92              12,084.36              16.4% 15,000.00         
TOTAL EXPENSES 16,245.03$           15,412.45$          265,757.27$          250,729.30$          6.0% 333,929.94$     

REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES (13,578.37)$         (13,912.45)$         (237,333.61)$         (220,104.30)$        -7.8% (302,429.94)$    

MARCH, 2017

MARKETING 
ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS & EXPENSES



THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD +/- ANNUAL
REVENUES MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YR BUDGET
RENTALS 338.00$                    217.00$                1,936.00$                 1,748.95$                10.7% 750.00$                      
MEMBERSHIPS - RESIDENT 130.00                      134.00                  15,637.67                 16,547.94                -5.5% 25,000.00                   
MEMBERSHIPS PREMIERE - RESIDENT -                            -                        4,612.71                   4,511.35                  2.2% 4,500.00                     
MEM - FITNESS TENNIS COMBO RES -                            -                        5,658.03                   2,705.97                  109.1% 2,500.00                     
MEM - AQUATIC TENNIS COMBO RES -                            -                        -                            1,842.00                  -100.0% 3,500.00                     
MEMBERSHIPS - NON-RESIDENT 418.67                      484.37                  59,476.88                 73,823.35                -19.4% 95,000.00                   
MEMBERSHIPS PREMIERE - NON-RES 1,548.00                   258.00                  4,858.47                   12,620.17                -61.5% 15,000.00                   
MEM - FITNESS TENNIS COMBO NR -                            -                        3,841.16                   2,731.51                  40.6% 2,500.00                     
MEM - AQUATIC TENNIS COMBO NR -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% 500.00                        
RESIDENT MEMBERSHIPS EFT 1,470.00                   1,481.34               15,155.35                 13,290.64                14.0% 15,000.00                   
MEMBERSHIPS - NON-RESIDENT EFT 9,734.92                   8,774.62               100,742.64               73,793.13                36.5% 65,000.00                   
MEMBERSHIPS - CORPORATE -                            -                        -                            619.00                     -100.0% 500.00                        
SEASONAL COURT TIME TENNIS 2,436.03                   5,217.10               165,276.08               174,121.49              -5.1% 165,000.00                 
DAILY TENNIS/COURT TIME  INDOOR 22,325.75                 19,967.91              163,311.02               180,561.30              -9.6% 175,000.00                 
DAILY TENNIS/COURT TIME  OUTDOOR -                            -                        1,096.50                   1,268.98                  -13.6% 3,000.00                     
DAILY RACQUETBALL TIME -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% -                              
COURT TIME  RACQUETBALL -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% -                              
GUEST FEES 1,904.00                   1,872.00               9,627.00                   10,396.00                -7.4% 10,000.00                   
LESSONS - PRIVATE 26,724.51                 26,189.05              190,131.18               201,751.80              -5.8% 175,000.00                 
LESSONS - GROUP -                            -                        -                            29.00                       -100.0% -                              
LESSONS - GROUP ADULT 3,414.26                   3,818.68               157,960.48               116,680.00              35.4% 105,000.00                 
LESSONS - CARDIO TENNIS 479.53                      719.45                  10,229.26                 9,227.99                  10.9% 10,000.00                   
LESSONS - GROUP JUNIOR DEVELOPMENT 4,757.69                   2,912.71               137,827.24               117,944.05              16.9% 135,000.00                 
LESSONS - GROUP  HIGH PERFORM ACDMY 4,607.64                   5,693.66               112,369.82               114,876.89              -2.2% 155,000.00                 
LESSONS - GROUP DROP IN PROG 565.00                      (186.00)                 3,935.00                   17,644.60                -77.7% 15,000.00                   
LESSONS - GROUP  PRE ACADEMIES 2,270.32                   3,488.49               97,388.61                 95,220.25                2.3% 70,000.00                   
LESSONS - GROUP  CAMPS -                            -                        93,050.82                 74,048.87                25.7% 75,000.00                   
LEAGUES 35.83                        422.11                  16,756.44                 18,307.15                -8.5% 20,000.00                   
JUNIOR ACADEMY FEES -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% -                              
TOWEL FEES -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% -                              
TOURNAMENT FEES 130.00                      433.00                  30,909.92                 28,856.10                7.1% 30,000.00                   
VENDING INCOME 157.92                      159.52                  1,647.88                   1,193.54                  38.1% 2,200.00                     
NEW MEMBER ENROLLMENT FEES 50.00                        -                        4,050.00                   2,500.00                  62.0% 4,000.00                     
ON HOLD MEMBER  FEES 80.00                        -                        980.00                      900.00                     8.9% 1,000.00                     
PRO-SHOP 4,705.93                   3,444.79               26,821.03                 26,017.83                3.1% 25,000.00                   
CASH OVER/UNDER (2.00)                         (8.78)                     4.16                          (40.02)                      -110.4% -                              
CHILD CARE -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% -                              
INTEREST INCOME 415.63                      89.14                    3,244.37                   930.90                     248.5% 925.00                        
RISK MANAGEMENT AWARDS -                            0.0% -                              
OTHER INCOME /PROCESSING FEES -                            -                        3,003.22                   50.00                       5906.4% 1,800.00                     
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME -                            31,922.57              46,143.24                 32,834.93                40.5% 600.00
TOTAL REVENUES 88,697.63$               117,504.73$          1,487,682.18$          1,429,555.66$         4.1% 1,408,275.00$            

EXPENSES/ADMIN
PERSONAL SERVICES/FULL TIME 10,171.20$               11,425.50$            150,255.95$             151,724.47$            -1.0% 194,517.11$               
PERSONAL SERVICES/PART TIME 14,413.57                 14,005.19              154,259.34               142,787.10              8.0% 215,010.69                 
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 6,600.16                   6,612.62               80,231.89                 76,019.32                5.5% 111,735.44                 
VEHICLE EXPENSES -                            -                        (14.48)                       -                           -100.0% 300.00                        
GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSES 1,273.36                   954.20                  12,438.53                 8,090.29                  53.7% 18,070.00                   
PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS 367.00                      -                        534.90                      194.20                     175.4% 1,500.00                     
EDUCATIONAL TRAINING 810.29                      -                        4,999.12                   1,451.63                  244.4% 7,700.00                     
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -                            -                        430.92                      1,151.92                  -62.6% 2,700.00                     
POSTAGE -                            -                        69.67                        -                           100.0% 750.00                        
TELEPHONE 1,040.76                   129.35                  11,068.10                 11,101.81                -0.3% 10,800.00                   
OFFICE COMMODITIES 755.91                      1,343.89               3,535.23                   3,388.63                  4.3% 7,000.00                     
MISS. ADMIN. EXPENSES 4,494.21                   3,506.60               35,010.61                 22,157.38                58.0% 104,800.00                 
EQUIPMENT/NON-CAPITAL -                            -                        4,517.24                   1,926.79                  134.4% 4,700.00                     
AUDITING & ACCOUNTING -                            -                        4,250.00                   4,250.00                  0.0% 4,500.00                     
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/LEGAL -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% 500.00                        
MARKETING/PROMOTIONS 162.50                      132.00                  4,144.13                   2,106.00                  96.8% 5,500.00                     

40,088.96$               38,109.35$            465,731.15$             426,349.54$            9.2% 690,083.24$               

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT TENNIS CENTER
ELEVENTH MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS

MARCH, 2017



THIS MARCH THIS YEAR LAST YEAR YTD +/- ANNUAL
MONTH 2016 TO DATE TO DATE PRIOR YR BUDGET

EXPENSES/BUILDING
FULL TIME SALARIES/CUSTODIAL 2,933.26$                 2,843.55$              33,864.02$               32,879.97$              3.0% 39,767.20$                 
PART TIME SALARIES/CUSTODIAL 1,667.02                   1,339.69               17,477.60                 17,643.40                -0.9% 34,000.00                   
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 1,994.00                   1,871.12               22,321.61                 20,272.52                10.1% 27,737.20                   
CONTRACT SERVICES 6,030.66                   12,496.98              58,284.52                 76,662.36                -24.0% 107,245.00                 
UTILITIES 11,283.78                 7,184.96               71,288.56                 70,446.21                1.2% 89,961.00                   
INSURANCE /BUILDING -                            -                        32,764.90                 30,635.46                7.0% 27,000.00                   
COMMODITIES -                            50.00                    7,110.91                   2,821.70                  152.0% 13,001.00                   
EQUIPMENT 55.26                        1,485.90               2,101.38                   6,910.48                  -69.6% 8,000.00                     
VENDING EXPENSES -                            -                        540.88                      464.24                     16.5% 1,800.00                     
TOTAL EXPENSES-BLDG. 23,963.98$               27,272.20$            245,754.38$             258,736.34$            -5.0% 348,511.40$               

EXPENSES/PROGRAMS
PERSONNEL SALARIES/FULL TIME -$                          -$                      -$                          -$                         0.0% -$                            
PERSONNEL SALARIES/PART TIME 36,234.89                 30,976.19              279,927.89               260,223.76              7.6% 285,000.00                 
INSURANCE & BENEFITS 8,564.03                   6,105.24               75,642.45                 38,799.22                95.0% 102,949.52                 
EDUCATIONAL TRAINING 917.77                      88.00                    1,185.27                   236.50                     401.2% 4,500.00                     
ACADEMY EXPENSES -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% -                              
LEAGUE EXPENSES -                            -                        -                           0.0% 500.00                        
TOURNAMENT EXPENSES -                            -                        5,558.00                   5,930.00                  -6.3% 9,500.00                     
COMMODITIES 1,726.55                   142.42                  16,779.91                 11,083.28                51.4% 20,000.00                   
EQUIPMENT -                            -                        -                            -                           0.0% 1,500.00                     
PRO SHOP 5,882.03                   1,198.74               24,255.16                 21,476.41                12.9% 31,000.00                   

-                             -                              
TOTAL EXPENSES-PROGRAMS 53,325.27$               38,510.59$            403,348.68$             337,749.17$            19.4% 454,949.52$               

EXPENSES/CAPITAL PROJECTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS 24,913.40$               10,970.70$            94,050.63$               236,056.47$            -60.2% 250,000.00$               

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 142,291.61$              114,862.84$          1,208,884.84$          1,258,891.52$         -4.0% 1,743,544.16$            

REVENUES OVER(UNDER ) EXP. (53,593.98)$              2,641.89$              278,797.34$             170,664.14$            63.4% (335,269.16)$              

                 MARCH, 2017

                          OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT TENNIS CENTER
                        ELEVENTH  MONTH SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS













































































































Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Petty Cash Corporate

Petty Cash for April 2017

Received By Date Description Account Number Amount
No Activity for April 2017



Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

PETTY CASH RECREATION

Petty Cash for April 2017

Received By Date Description Account Number Amount
D. Thommes

3/24/17 Fun With Science Project 02-31-765-001 $20.64
Total $20.64

E. Plesnicar 3/5/17 Rec Plexx, Mount Prospect 02-01-660-002 $16.59
D. Thommes 3/14/17 NIU, Naperville 02-01-660-002 $15.73
M. Azzaretto 3/21/17 Warrenville Park District 02-01-660-002 $18.08

Total $50.40

Grand Total $71.04



 
 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  

From:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director 

Date:  April 12, 2017 

Re:  March/April 2017: Admin., Corporate Relations, IT & Marketing   

March Board Meeting Follow Up:     

Finance Ordinances 
 The board will be approving the Budget Ordinance and the Transfer Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2017-18.    
 
Butler School District IGA 

Karen Spandikow did a great job on the renewal of the Intergovernmental Agreements for Preschool as well as 
Dolphin Station with Butler School District 53. 

 
 
April Board Meeting Discussion Points: 
 
Age for Active Adult Senior Membership 
 Dave will be presenting the analysis of membership rates for the Active Adult Membership.   
 
Commissioner Tan and Truedson 

Commissioner Tan and Commissioner Truedson were elected to a 6-year term.  Commissioner Tan would like to 
attend IAPD “Boot Camp” training and therefore needs to present to the board the expenses for this seminar 
according to the Local Government Travel Expense Control Act.   
   
 
 

 
  
  



 Page 2 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To: Board of Commissioners and Executive Director, Laure Kosey  
From: Marco Salinas, Chief Financial Officer  
Date: April 12, 2017 
Re: March 2017 Financials and Finance Department Activities  

 
MARCH 2017 FINANCIALS: 

General Fund 
 
We have now completed approximately 92% of the fiscal year (eleven months completed) and year-to-date 
revenues are ahead of target at 94.8% of the annual budget.  On the expenditure side, year-to-date activity is behind 
target at 80.5% of the annual budget. 
 
Property Taxes- Property tax revenue is the largest single source revenue stream in this fund as it comprises 
approximately 55% of all budgeted revenues.  As expected, this revenue is ahead of target at 100% as we have now 
received the majority of the tax levy.  Historically, the Park District receives the bulk of the levy from DuPage County 
during the months of June and September. 
 
Investment Income- This revenue source is currently unfavorable against budget and prior year-to-date.  The primary 
driver of this revenue is monthly interest earned on our money market account and such interest is currently being 
allocated across all ten of our funds.  This year we are allocating less interest income to the General Fund and have 
increased the interest allocation to the Recreation Fund.  This change has resulted in the unfavorable variances 
described above.  
 
Central Park- Expenditures in this cost center are higher than prior year primarily due to a change in the allocation of 
compensation and benefit costs for the Parks & Planning Director position.  In fiscal year 2015/2016, this activity was 
budgeted and recorded in the Administration cost center whereas in the current fiscal year such costs are now being 
recorded in this cost center.  In addition, commodities for the maintenance of our athletic fields and landscaping costs 
are higher than prior year.   
 
Dean Property- The $3,000 in revenues represents a sponsorship from the tennis center for the beehive program.  
Expenditures have increased over prior year due to the purchase and installation of a motion detection camera and 
repair costs incurred to repair damage to a Porta John and the barn, that were caused by vandalism.   
  
Professional Services- This cost center is ahead of target at 108.5% of budget primarily due to our legal fee activity. 
Legal fees were budgeted at $50,000 and YTD we have incurred approximately $68,000 in expenditures.  Our legal 
counsel has assisted us with various projects such as the updating of our personnel manual, the Travel, Meal, and 
Lodging Expense Act and drafting of the bank collateral and pledge agreements, among other things.  These 
increased costs are partially being offset by lower than expected IT expenditures which also comprise this cost 
center.  
  

Recreation Fund 
 
Personal Property Replacement Taxes (PPRT) - This revenue source is unfavorable to budget at 77.5% primarily 
due to the fact that per the Illinois Department of Revenue, current fiscal year disbursements to local governments, 
including the Park District, are expected to decline 10.64% over the previous year’s disbursements.  This is due to 



 Page 2 

anticipated “flat” replacement revenues and the approval by the state legislature of a $100 million withdrawal from 
the PPRT fund.    
 
Other- This revenue stream is at 24.6% of the current budget and has decreased approximately 65% when 
compared to the prior year.  Finance is researching the reason for this decrease.  
 
Aquatic Recreation Programs- Although revenues in this cost center are slightly below target at 88.9% of budget, 
revenues have decreased 11.5% when compared to the prior year.  A detailed review of the underlying accounts 
shows that revenues for children’s private lessons have decreased from $204,623 in the prior fiscal year, to 
$162,472 in the current fiscal year.  Finance is researching the cause(s) for this decrease. 
 
Pioneer Programs- Revenues in this cost center are unfavorable at 68.3% primarily due to the fact that several of the 
multi-day (out of state) trips have been organized with the assistance of a travel agency.  When this occurs, the travel 
agency collects and records all reservation revenue and remits a “commission” to the Park District. This arrangement 
also results in a corresponding decrease in expenditures.  YTD expenditures are currently at 60.4% of budget and 
reflect an 18.5% decrease over the prior year.  The Park District’s decision to either utilize an external travel agency 
or organize the trip in-house is based on the assessment of anticipated revenues and expenses. 
 
Youth Programs- Revenues in this cost center are favorable against budget at 122.7% and reflect a 40.1% increase 
over prior year primarily due to the addition this year of a youth after school program.  Such activity has been 
budgeted at approximately $32,000 and actual revenues are currently at $36,537.  This additional program has also 
impacted expenditures.   YTD expenditures for this cost center totals $104,018 and reflects an increase of 28.9% 
over prior year expenditures of $80,698. 
 

Recreational Facilities Fund (Tennis Center) 
 
Administration Revenue- This category is favorable to budget due to the receipt in November 2016 of $42,786 from 
the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEO) Program.  This is related to the indoor 
tennis court lighting project that was completed in the previous fiscal year. 
 
Programs- Racquet Club- Revenues are favorable to budget at 102.2% and reflect a slight increase over prior year’s 
revenues.  Although related expenses are within range of the annual budget, they do reflect a 19.4% increase over 
prior year.  The largest driver of this is the increase in part-time salaries.  YTD part-time salaries are at $279,928 
versus prior year’s YTD total of $260,224.  Additionally, personnel health insurance costs have increased over prior 
year due to changes in the Affordable Care Act (ACA) that has resulted in additional eligibility for coverage.   
 
FINANCE OPERATIONS: 
 

• The bank collateral agreement between the Park District and Evergreen Bank is now in place and the related 
bank pledge agreement should be in place within the next week. 

• We have published notice of our upcoming public hearing for our proposed fiscal year 2017/2018 budget in 
the Chicago Tribune, and in accordance with state statute. 

• We have included a couple of bar charts with these financials to provide additional visual comparison of 
current year financial data with prior year financial data for the General Fund.  

• Our fiscal year end is fast approaching and staff will soon begin working on various year-end adjustments in 
preparation for the annual audit of our financial statements. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES: 
 

• Finance staff has begun receiving and processing year-end performance evaluations.   
 



 2016/2017 
Annual Budget 

 March 2017 
Actual 

 2016/2017 Year-
To-Date
Actual 

 2016/2017 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2015/2016 Year-
To-Date Actual

2016/2017 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2015/2016

Percent 
Change

REVENUES

 Administration 
Property Taxes  $            1,458,000  $                   266  $        1,458,026 100.0%  $          1,451,302  $                          6,725 0.5%

Personal Property Repl. Taxes                      90,000                    9,757                  78,780 87.5%                    79,431                                (651) -0.8%

Investment Income                      10,000                        796                     8,176 81.8%                    10,191                            (2,015) -19.8%

Other                        3,000                          68                     2,715 90.5%                       2,948                                (233) -7.9%

 Central Park                    100,000                    7,552                  86,190 86.2%                    90,183                            (3,993) -4.4%

 Dean Property                               -                             -                       3,000 N/A                             -                                3,000 N/A

 Building-Recreation Center                    929,653                  52,610                809,911 87.1%                  782,715                            27,196 3.5%

 Central Park West                      76,740                    4,513                  82,128 107.0%                    76,196                              5,932 7.8%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,667,393$            75,562$              2,528,926$         94.8% 2,492,965$          35,960$                       1.4%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 923,066$                60,232$              710,944$            77.0% 752,296$               $                      (41,352) -5.5%

 Central Park 611,690                  33,544                512,063              83.7% 400,104                111,959                        28.0%

 Saddlebrook Park 17,885                    390                      7,265                   40.6% 10,839                   (3,574)                           -33.0%

 Forest Glen Park 27,585                    8                          19,587                 71.0% 21,486                   (1,899)                           -8.8%

 Chillem Park 5,880                       -                           2,748                   46.7% 3,586                     (838)                              -23.4%

 Dean Property 8,304                       (313)                     8,138                   98.0% 3,967                     4,171                            105.1%

 Professional Services 70,000                    7,030                   75,945                 108.5% 31,930                   44,014                          137.8%

 Contracts- Maintenance DNS 38,500                    -                           29,498                 76.6% 36,860                   (7,363)                           -20.0%

 Building-Recreation Center 900,855                  65,531                740,871              82.2% 730,793                10,078                          1.4%

 Central Park West 59,001                    5,280                   35,918                 60.9% 31,804                   4,114                            12.9%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,662,765$            171,702$            2,142,977$         80.5% 2,023,665$           119,312$                     5.9%

 TRANSFERS OUT 285,000$                -$                     285,000$            100.0% 275,000$              10,000$                        3.6%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND
TRANSFERS OUT

2,947,765$            171,702$            2,427,977$         82.4% 2,298,665$          129,312$                     5.6%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS 

OUT
(280,372)$              (96,140)$            100,948$            -36.0% 194,300$              (93,352)$                      -48.0%

Note> Fiscal year 2016/2017 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).  When 
comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of +/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

General Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited
Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through March 31, 2017 and 2016

91.67% through the fiscal years (11 out of 12 months)

Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas



 REVENUES 
 2016/2017 Annual 

Budget 
 March 2017 

Actual 

 2016/2017 Year-
To-Date
Actual 

 2016/2017 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2015/2016 Year-
To-Date Actual

2016/2017 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2015/2016

Percent 
Change

 Administration 
Property Taxes  $                828,500  $                   151  $            828,932 100.1%  $              810,733  $                       18,199 2.2%

Personal Property Repl. Taxes                      32,000                    3,072                  24,801 77.5%                    25,006                               (205) -0.8%

Investment Income                      11,000                    1,144                  11,886 108.1%                    11,343                                 542 4.8%

Other                        6,500                       115                    1,596 24.6%                      4,573                            (2,977) -65.1%

 Fitness Center                    813,935                  77,073                752,432 92.4%                  690,322                            62,110 9.0%

 Aquatic Center                    460,912                  32,135                441,737 95.8%                  399,789                            41,948 10.5%

 Aquatic Recreation Programs                    647,517                  19,191                575,785 88.9%                  650,328                          (74,543) -11.5%

 Childrens Programs                      88,145                    2,200                  78,611 89.2%                    78,641                                  (30) 0.0%

 Preschool Programs                    274,123                  22,611                281,946 102.9%                  253,660                            28,285 11.2%

 Youth Programs                    144,109                    1,073                176,824 122.7%                  126,179                            50,645 40.1%

 Adult Programs                      55,636                       963                  51,847 93.2%                    49,609                              2,238 4.5%

 Pioneer Programs                    170,400                       757                116,405 68.3%                  140,731                          (24,326) -17.3%

 Special Events and Trips                      75,515                       480                  75,180 99.6%                    58,250                            16,930 29.1%

 Marketing                      31,500                    2,667                  28,424 90.2%                    30,625                            (2,201) -7.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,639,791$            163,633$            3,446,405$        94.7% 3,329,789$          116,615$                    3.5%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 895,215$                40,677$              604,450$            67.5% 616,994$               $                      (12,545) -2.0%

 Fitness Center 665,513                  41,044                553,017              83.1% 560,091                (7,074)                           -1.3%

 Aquatic Center 866,637                  50,050                672,176              77.6% 651,943                20,233                          3.1%

 Aquatic Recreation Programs 330,078                  22,781                260,639              79.0% 292,336                (31,697)                         -10.8%

 Childrens Programs 82,502                    7,093                  60,031                72.8% 63,455                  (3,423)                           -5.4%

 Preschool Programs 215,113                  14,859                190,734              88.7% 168,813                21,921                          13.0%

 Youth Programs 123,736                  2,862                  104,018              84.1% 80,698                  23,320                          28.9%

 Adult Programs 51,642                    3,221                  38,231                74.0% 35,817                  2,414                            6.7%

 Pioneer Programs 170,206                  1,701                  102,745              60.4% 126,119                (23,374)                         -18.5%

 Special Events and Trips 76,470                    774                      64,431                84.3% 56,407                  8,024                            14.2%

 Marketing 333,930                  16,245                265,757              79.6% 250,729                15,028                          6.0%

 Capital Outlay 420,000                  -                           189,848              45.2% 43,500                  146,348                        336.4%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,231,042$            201,307$            3,106,078$        73.4% 2,946,903$           159,175$                     5.4%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES

(591,250)$              (37,674)$            340,327$            -57.6% 382,886$              (42,559)$                      -11.1%

Note> Fiscal year 2016/2017 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).  When 
comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of +/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District
Recreation Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through March 31, 2017 and 2016
91.67% through the fiscal years (11 out of 12 months)

Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

Prepared by: Marco Salinas



 REVENUES 
 2016/2017 Annual 

Budget 

 March 2017 

Actual 

 2016/2017 Year-

To-Date

Actual 

 2016/2017 Y-T-D 

Actual as a % of 

Annual Budget 

2015/2016 Year-

To-Date Actual

2016/2017 Y-T-D 

Actual Higher/

(Lower) than 

2015/2016

Percent 

Change

 Administration  $                    3,325  $                   416  $              52,391 1575.7%  $                33,816  $                       18,575 54.9%

 Building- Racquet Club                        1,700                          79                        938 55.2%                          568                                 371 65.3%

 Programs- Racquet Club                1,403,250                  88,203             1,434,353 102.2%               1,395,172                            39,181 2.8%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,408,275$            88,698$              1,487,682$        105.6% 1,429,556$          58,127$                       4.1%

EXPENSES

 Administration 690,083$                40,089$              465,731$            67.5% 426,350$               $                       39,382 9.2%

 Building- Racquet Club 348,511                  23,964                245,754              70.5% 258,736                (12,982)                         -5.0%

 Programs- Racquet Club 454,950                  53,325                403,349              88.7% 337,749                65,600                          19.4%

 Capital Outlay 250,000                  24,913                94,051                37.6% 236,056                (142,006)                      -60.2%

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,743,544$            142,292$            1,208,885$        69.3% 1,258,892$           (50,007)$                      -4.0%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENSES
(335,269)$              (53,594)$            278,797$            -83.2% 170,664$              108,133$                     63.4%

Note> Fiscal year 2016/2017 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).  When 
comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of +/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Tennis Center (Recreational Facilities Fund) Revenue and Expense Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through March 31, 2017 and 2016

91.67% through the fiscal years (11 out of 12 months)

Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas



May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

$7
7,

07
0 

$7
95

,1
55

 

$2
11

,2
97

 

$9
3,

41
3 

$6
18

,0
50

 

$2
10

,1
93

 

$9
0,

56
4 

$1
06

,1
84

 

$1
81

,0
47

 

$4
8,

05
3 

$6
1,

94
1 

$1
77

,8
82

 

$7
8,

49
3 

$8
21

,4
28

 

$2
13

,2
97

 

$1
05

,0
18

 

$6
45

,7
98

 

$2
12

,9
53

 

$7
8,

60
9 

$7
3,

22
2 

$1
80

,1
38

 

$4
4,

40
9 

$7
5,

56
2 

$-

$7
7,

78
1 

$8
08

,2
92

 

$2
12

,2
97

 

$9
9,

21
5 

$6
31

,9
24

 

$2
11

,5
73

 

$8
4,

58
6 

$8
9,

70
3 

$1
80

,5
92

 

$4
6,

23
1 

$6
8,

75
1 

$1
77

,8
82

 

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

General Fund- Monthly Revenues and Transfers In

2015/2016 2016/2017 AVERAGE

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas



$9
7,

18
4 

$1
96

,2
99

 

$2
54

,9
00

 

$1
83

,7
74

 

$1
86

,7
58

 

$1
68

,4
76

 $2
07

,0
50

 

$2
25

,5
50

 

$3
13

,3
60

 

$1
58

,0
62

 

$3
07

,2
53

 

$2
79

,9
79

 

$9
7,

80
5 

$1
92

,5
71

 $2
34

,3
38

 

$2
18

,1
12

 

$2
14

,0
45

 

$3
46

,9
95

 

$1
94

,1
26

 

$2
55

,5
75

 

$1
71

,7
25

 

$3
30

,9
83

 

$1
71

,7
02

 

$-

$9
7,

49
4 

$1
94

,4
35

 

$2
44

,6
19

 

$2
00

,9
43

 

$2
00

,4
02

 

$2
57

,7
35

 

$2
00

,5
88

 $2
40

,5
63

 

$2
42

,5
42

 

$2
44

,5
23

 

$2
39

,4
78

 $2
79

,9
79

 

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

General Fund- Monthly Expenditures and Transfers Out

2015/2016 2016/2017 AVERAGE

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas



  
MARCH MARCH

FUND NAME ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE $ VARIANCE %
GENERAL CORPORATE FUND

REVENUE 75,562.02$          85,042.39$          (9,480.37)$           -11%
EXPENSES 171,702.19$        198,355.44$        26,653.25$          13%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (96,140.17)$         (113,313.05)$       17,172.88$          15%

  
RECREATION FUND   

REVENUE 163,632.89$        230,499.07$        (66,866.18)$         -29%
EXPENSES 201,306.72$        353,086.46$        151,779.74$        43%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (37,673.83)$         (122,587.39)$       84,913.56$          69%

  
IMRF FUND    

REVENUE 2,828.54$            1,163.34$            1,665.20$            143%
EXPENSES 14,233.98$          15,833.34$          1,599.36$            10%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (11,405.44)$         (14,670.00)$         3,264.56$            22%

  
   

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND   
REVENUE 765.43$               439.17$               326.26$               74%
EXPENSES -$                    -$                    -$                    0%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 765.43$               439.17$               326.26$               74%

  
AUDIT FUND   

REVENUE 20.48$                 10.84$                 9.64$                   89%
EXPENSES -$                    41.67$                 41.67$                 100%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 20.48$                 (30.83)$                51.31$                 166%

  
   

DEBT SERVICE FUND   
REVENUE 83.51$                 27.92$                 55.59$                 199%
EXPENSES -$                    -$                    -$                    0%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 83.51$                 27.92$                 55.59$                 199%

  

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

CURRENT MONTH MARCH, 2017

1
Prepared By: N Strathdee

4/11/2017



  
MARCH MARCH

FUND NAME ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE $ VARIANCE %

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

CURRENT MONTH MARCH, 2017

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND   
(TENNIS CENTER)  

REVENUE 88,697.63$          101,687.98$        (12,990.35)$         -13%
EXPENSES 142,291.61$        157,929.81$        15,638.20$          10%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (53,593.98)$         (56,241.83)$         2,647.85$            5%

  
 

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND  
REVENUE 24.43$                 45.84$                 (21.41)$                -47%
EXPENSES 2,134.68$            7,420.00$            5,285.32$            71%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,110.25)$           (7,374.16)$           5,263.91$            71%

  
  

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND   
REVENUE 994.86$               142,691.67$        (141,696.81)$       99%
EXPENSES 8,662.50$            70,750.01$          62,087.51$          88%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (7,667.64)$           71,941.66$          (79,609.30)$         -111%

  
  

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND   
REVENUE 1,886.06$            866.67$               1,019.39$            118%
EXPENSES 18,309.79$          20,000.01$          1,690.22$            8%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (16,423.73)$         (19,133.34)$         2,709.61$            14%

  
  

SUMMARY   
   REVENUE 334,495.85$        562,474.89$        (227,979.04)$       -41%
   EXPENSES 558,641.47$        823,416.74$        264,775.27$        32%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (224,145.62)$       (260,941.85)$       36,796.23$          14%

2
Prepared By: N Strathdee

4/11/2017



  
MARCH MARCH

FUND NAME ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE $ VARIANCE %
GENERAL CORPORATE FUND

REVENUE 2,528,925.70$     2,497,529.58$     31,396.12$          1%
EXPENSES 2,427,977.46$     2,725,249.78$     297,272.32$        11%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 100,948.24$        (227,720.20)$       328,668.44$        144%

  
RECREATION FUND   

REVENUE 3,446,404.78$     3,447,543.69$     (1,138.91)$           0%
EXPENSES 3,106,077.84$     3,822,982.36$     716,904.52$        19%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 340,326.94$        (375,438.67)$       715,765.61$        191%

  
IMRF FUND    

REVENUE 203,889.64$        201,816.66$        2,072.98$            1%
EXPENSES 168,203.42$        174,166.66$        5,963.24$            3%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 35,686.22$          27,650.00$          8,036.22$            29%

  
   

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND   
REVENUE 100,496.34$        99,040.83$          1,455.51$            1%
EXPENSES 110,079.50$        115,000.00$        4,920.50$            4%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (9,583.16)$           (15,959.17)$         6,376.01$            40%

  
AUDIT FUND   

REVENUE 21,567.42$          21,789.16$          (221.74)$              -1%
EXPENSES 12,870.00$          27,808.33$          14,938.33$          54%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 8,697.42$            (6,019.17)$           14,716.59$          244%

  
   

DEBT SERVICE FUND   
REVENUE 300,227.95$        308,338.08$        (8,110.13)$           -3%
EXPENSES 308,029.98$        308,030.00$        0.02$                   0%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (7,802.03)$           308.08$               (8,110.11)$           -2632%

  

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

YEAR TO DATE MARCH, 2017

1
Prepared By: N Strathdee

4/11/2017



  
MARCH MARCH

FUND NAME ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE $ VARIANCE %

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

YEAR TO DATE MARCH, 2017

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND   
(TENNIS CENTER)  

REVENUE 1,487,682.18$     1,310,522.02$     177,160.16$        14%
EXPENSES 1,208,884.84$     1,610,807.86$     401,923.02$        25%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 278,797.34$        (300,285.84)$       579,083.18$        193%

  
 

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND  
REVENUE 89,630.56$          91,124.16$          (1,493.60)$           -2%
EXPENSES 89,828.26$          104,580.00$        14,751.74$          14%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (197.70)$              (13,455.84)$         13,258.14$          99%

  
  

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND   
REVENUE 1,653,855.72$     287,108.33$        1,366,747.39$     476%
EXPENSES 62,642.56$          778,249.99$        715,607.43$        92%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 1,591,213.16$     (491,141.66)$       2,082,354.82$     424%

  
  

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND   
REVENUE 224,306.04$        223,693.33$        612.71$               0%
EXPENSES 217,219.83$        219,999.99$        2,780.16$            1%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 7,086.21$            3,693.34$            3,392.87$            92%

  
  

SUMMARY   
   REVENUE 10,056,986.33$   8,488,505.84$     1,568,480.49$     18%
   EXPENSES 7,711,813.69$     9,886,874.97$     2,175,061.28$     22%
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,345,172.64$     (1,398,369.13)$    3,743,541.77$     268%

2
Prepared By: N Strathdee

4/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Capital Expenditures

As of March, 2017

DESCRIPTION VENDOR DB/CR
CAPITAL ASSET 
REPLACEMENT

FACILITY/PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS

Engineering for Sewer Line Manhard Consulting, LTD 1,200.00$       -$                   1,200.00$             
Engineering for Sewer Line Manhard Consulting, LTD 4,745.00         4,745.00               
Engineering for Sewer Line Manhard Consulting, LTD 1,917.75         1,917.75               
Gabion Weir Manhard Consulting, LTD 4,500.00         4,500.00            
Boiler Installation Maintenance Garage Dupree Heating & Air Conditioning 16,262.00        16,262.00             
Boiler Installation-Electric Maintenance GarageSouthwest Electric 935.00            935.00                  
Ellipse Waste/Recycle Bins Smart Industry Products 24,090.00        24,090.00             
Concrete Supplies for Waster/Recycle Bins Home Depot 330.31            330.31                  
45 Licenses Office 2016 PCM Sales 8,662.50         8,662.50             

   

 
Subtotal-Capital Improvement 
Fund 62,642.56$     13,162.50$        49,480.06$           

     
Fitness Cardio Equipment Lease # 1 Lease Servicing Center 32,760.71       32,760.71           
Kubota RTV Vehicle Russo Power Equipment 24,007.00       24,007.00           
Concrete Work CPW Playground Professional Paving & Concrete 16,800.25       16,800.25             
Stone Base & Topsoil CPW Playground Tamling Industries 3,219.45         3,219.45               
Smart Playground Surface, CPW Playground Playworld Systems 34,680.55       34,680.55             
Interglass Surface Lap Pool Mid-America Pool Renovations 54,380.00        54,380.00             
Grates Lap Pool Mid-America Pool Renovations 24,000.00        24,000.00             

 Subtotal-Recreation Fund Capital 189,847.96$   56,767.71          133,080.25$         
    
    
    
    

 TOTAL BALANCE 252,490.52$   69,930.21$        182,560.31$         

Prepared By: N Strathdee
4/11/2017



 
 
 
 

Memo 

To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  
From:  Dave Thommes, Director of Recreation & Facilities  
Date:  April 12, 2017 
Re:  Recreation & Facilities Report   

Recreation 
• Karen Spandikow escorted the Travel Club to Sedona from March 19 – 24. Twelve participants enjoyed time at 

the Grand Canyon, Oak Creek Canyon, Chapel of the Holy Cross, Montezuma Castle and enjoyed picturesque 
rides on the Grand Canyon Railway and Verde Canyon railroad. Most of the group is also planning on attending 
the trip to Cape Cod this fall. Enjoy some pictures on our Facebook page.  

• Spring Break campers enjoyed time at the Family Recreation Center this year with crafts, games, gym time and 
swimming! Pee Wee Spring break filled this year.  

• Preschool registration is underway and 4-year-old preschool is practically full for the 2017 - 2018 school year.  
Aquatics  

• Fifty kids are registered for Stars Spring Training so far.  We have more kids registering every day. 
• Spring Break was extremely busy at the Aquatic Center.  We had three camps come in as well as many open 

swim patrons. 
• Staff attended a seminar about water quality and upcoming aquatic products. 
• Planning began for prepping and painting the pool at Splash Island.  Repairs were made to the play structure in 

Splash Island. 
• Swim Lessons are beginning to get extremely busy.  Staff is working on getting as many participants in as 

possible and clearing the waitlists.   
Athletics 

• Staff tried to run a Preseason One Pitch Softball Tournament and generated interest, however, we did not end 
up getting enough to run it. Teams in our league appreciated the effort and liked the idea for next year, possibly 
on a different weekend. 

• Staff are looking into buying a new portable mound for field 1. This mound ideally would be split between the 
Park District, Oak Brook Outlaws and Oak Brook Little League.  

• Natalie Nelson has been hired to be the Recreation Intern for this upcoming Summer. Natalie is currently a 
junior at Illinois State University. Her first day will be June 19th. 

Fitness 
• As of April 10th, the Pink 5K has 273 participants registered. The event is Saturday, May 13th at 8 am. 
• As of April 10th, Cori’s Kids Triathlon has 11 participants registered. The event is Saturday, June 3rd at 8 am. 
• New session of Tai Chi began April 5th with 7 participants. 

 
Tennis 

• On Friday, March 10th the Tennis Center hosted a “Free Rally the Family” foam ball tournament. 
• The Tennis Center hosted the Oak Brook Spring Break Open tournament with 65 participants March 31st – April 

2nd. 
  



 Page 2 

 
Facilities 
 
 

March-17 
  Retained Total Rate 

Aquatic 175 184 95.1% 

Aqua/Ten 2 2 0.0% 

Fitness 524 567 92.4% 

Fit/Aqua 167 173 96.5% 

Fit/Ten 19 25 76.0% 

Premiere 38 40 95.0% 

        

Yearly Total 925 991 93.3% 

EFT Aqua 655 663 98.8% 
EFT 

Aqua/Ten 29 29 100.0% 

EFT Fitness 1021 1041 98.1% 

EFT Fit/Aqua 583 612 95.3% 

EFT Fit/Ten 67 69 97.1% 
EFT 

Premiere 123 123 100.0% 

        

Yearly & EFT 3403 3528 96.5% 
 
Fitness: Five cancellations; three due to relocation and two due to lack of use.  
Fitness – Aquatic: One cancellation due to lack of use. 
Fitness – Tennis: One cancellation due to lack of use. 
 
We gained thirty-one new members in March. 
 
 



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Swim Lesson and Swim Team Statistics

Summer Fall Wint/Spr Total
2008/2009 1061 986 1463 3510
2009/2010 1376 1146 2237 4759
2010/2011 1552 1404 2457 5413
2011/2012 1632 1534 2481 5647
2012/2013 1733 1673 2680 6086
2013/2014* 1826 1687 2354 5867
2014/2015 2375 1545 2181 6101
2015/2016 2202 1562 2457 6221
2016/17 1995 1451 2051 5497
2017/18 367

Summer Fall/Winter Spring 
2007/2008 108 76
2008/2009 23 33 11
2009/2010 20 57 29
2010/2011 41 79 36
2011/2012 62 99 50
2012/2013 59 131 33
2013/2014 69 101 55
2014/2015 60 100 39
2015/2016 34 56 27
2016/17 32 51 21

Swim Lesson Statistics

*2014/15 Increase in kids who signed up for full season right away meant less spots available for spring.  

Swim Team Statistics

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000
7000

2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014* 2014/2015 2015/2016

Swim Lesson Statistics

Swim Lesson Statistics Summer Swim Lesson Statistics Fall

Swim Lesson Statistics Wint/Spr Swim Lesson Statistics Total



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Aquatic Party Statistics

Total # Parties Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
Splash Birthday 19 32 27 78

Super Splash Birthday 11 6 11 28
Group  (by day) 8 4 7 19

Private (indoors only) 6 7 7 20
Private (indoor/outdoor combo) 0 0 0 0

Splash Island Birthday 0 0 0 0
Camp Rentals 1 0 3 4

Lane Rental (lap only) 0 0 0 0
Scout 1 3 4 8

Total # Parties 46 52 59 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 157

2016 65 60 61 80 84 90 80 68 34 49 44 46 761
2015 52 58 71 51 65 77 82 47 37 44 49 42 675
2014 51 48 77 58 69 66 46 45 48 51 58 50 667
2013 53 65 73 81 70 61 34 34 28 46 61 39 645
2012 40 55 43 65 43 59 46 29 33 44 64 41 562
2011 39 42 51 71 51 51 30 25 19 30 35 36 480
2010 37 55 57 39 55 40 31 28 21 31 38 37 469
2009 40 53 53 43 45 45 35 35 18 28 37 61 493
2008 48 62 73 78 53 44 37 39 35 30 43 31 573

2017 Aquatic Party Statistics



Oak Brook Park District
Athletic Fields Rental Report

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 15/16 YTD 14/15 Actual

Hours 172 133 94 128 157 130 57 27 0 0 69 146 1,113 1194
Revenue $12,606 $7,250 $3,073 $9,142 $8,195 $9,185 $5,212 $2,827 $0 $0 $11,880 $9,119 $78,489 $74,929

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 15/16 YTD 14/15 Actual

Hours 165 166 192 229 230 181 3 0 0 0 0 161.5 1,328 1217
Revenue $3,187 $1,842 $875 $1,352 $3,475 $3,047 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,128 $14,981 $16,604

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 15/16 YTD 14/15 Actual

Hours 153 122 137 158 349 128 17 0 0 0 0 115 1,179 1342
Revenue $5,060 $3,913 $1,022 $1,755 $3,820 $3,090 $6,747 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,507 $27,914 $22,089

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 YTD

Hours 149 116 86 130 165 190 97 28 5 26 108 1,099 967
Revenue $11,855 $7,598 $3,236 $9,478 $8,602 $10,652 $5,313 $478 $500 $2,600 $8,334 $68,643 $69,370

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 YTD

Hours 207 105 138 177 191 196 0 0 0 0 0 1,013 1,166
Revenue $2,900 $2,800 $600 $650 $1,550 $1,075 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,575 $13,853

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 YTD

Hours 118 118 147 70 222 246 9 0 0 0 0 930 1,064
Revenue $3,123 $1,924 $735 $960 $4,062 $3,422 $912 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,138 $25,407

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields



Oak Brook Park District
Facility Statistics and Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 45,124 40,601 32,809 32,567 30,733 33,211 23,428 17,907 17,578 23,112 31,682 37,338 366,090

Weekday Avg. 1,475 1,387 1,107 1,077 1,083 1,240 854 646 631 814 1,014 1,267 1,050
Weekend Avg. 1,419 1,436 1,051 973 768 743 634 382 541 601 1,039 1,183 898

2017 43,582 37,431 45,170 126,183
Weekday Avg. 1,355 1,252 1,597 1,401
Weekend Avg. 1,531 1,551 1,054 1,379

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 268 258 227 220 231 209 160 203 177 211 224 248 2,636

Gym Rentals 182 175 131 127 130 120 81 114 102 139 137 164 1,602
Room Rentals 79 83 86 81 88 64 56 68 61 70 75 74 885
CPW Rentals 9 8 10 12 13 25 23 21 14 2 12 10 159
CPW Revenue $2,763 $3,325 $3,258 $4,840 $4,713 $10,105 $9,535 $6,335 $5,650 $593 $3,823 $4,325 $59,263

2017 231 198 224 653
Gym Rentals 164 132 136 432

Room Rentals 57 56 69 182
CPW Rentals 10 10 19 39
CPW Revenue $3,745 $3,360 $6,413 $13,518

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 2 3 3 7 6 8 1 2 3 5 1 1 42

2017 4 2 4 10

Theme Parties

 Facility Usage

Facility Rentals



Oak Brook Park District 
Family Recreation Center 
Membership Usage Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2014 2,231 2,257 2,292 2,309 2,323 2,294 2,280 2,316 2,291 2,218 2,307 2,282
Resident 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 69% 69% 69% 69% 67%

Non Resident 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 31% 31% 31% 31% 33%
EFT 1,929 1,947 1,979 2,030 1,972 1,954 1,906 1,965 1,981 1,932 1,961 2,035

2015 2,368 2,412 2,467 2,489 2,520 2,572 2,628 2,464 2,636 2,564 2,534 3,299
Resident 67% 67% 67% 67% 67% 66% 66% 64% 65% 65% 63% 54%

Non Resident 33% 33% 33% 33% 33% 34% 34% 36% 35% 35% 37% 46%
EFT 2,123 2,141 2,195 2,192 2,149 2,243 2,207 2,263 2,318 2,277 2,556 2,492

2016 3,524 3,456 3,704 3,623 4,053 4,204 4,333 4,220 3,603 3,571 3,600 3,757
Resident 54% 53% 54% 56% 54% 52% 52% 52% 56% 55% 57% 56%

Non Resident 46% 47% 46% 44% 46% 48% 48% 48% 44% 45% 43% 44%
EFT 2,216 2,674 2,188 2,170 2,205 2,177 2,212 2,207 2,207 2,197 2,209 2,329

2017 3,901 3,715 3,686
Resident 55% 53% 53%

Non Resident 45% 47% 47%
EFT 2,481 2,495 2,514

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2014 8,783 9,082 9,826 9,290 8,291 8,440 7,960 7,597 7,897 8,805 8,625 8,403

2015 10,055 8,974 9,813 8,938 8,713 9,082 8,655 8,545 7,911 8,612 8,261** 10,880

2016 13,418 13,216 12,915 12,360 11,828 11,750 11,538 10,900 9,097 10,625 10,233 10,034

2017 12,631 11,559 12,351

*Members

Usage



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Board of Commissioners  
From:  Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning  
Date:  April 12, 2017 
Re:  Board Report  

 

• Installation of the new sanitary force main sewer at the maintenance garage is scheduled to begin the week of 4-10-17. 
The project should take approximately 1 week to complete and should have minimal impact on daily operations. 

• A portion of the barn located at the Dean Nature Sanctuary was damaged by a fire on March 23rd. A fire investigation was 
conducted and a lightning strike is suspected as the cause, however it is officially documented as “undetermined” for lack 
of enough evidence. Staff is investigating options for what to do with the structure. 

• The Kubota tractor/backhoe has been ordered delivery to the District is expected before the end of the month. 

• Staff is continuing to work with Wight and Company on finalizing a master plan for the ball field area at Central Park. 

• A number of small repairs have been made to the synthetic turf field and several more are scheduled for later in the month. 
Routine and preventative maintenance is necessary to keep the field in optimal condition and to extend the life of the turf.  

• The final light reading has been completed for the athletic field lights, and it was determined that a particular high reading 
was the result of a reflection rather than an actual light bulb. The agreed upon solution is to paint the reflective surface with 
a non-reflective paint. This work is expected to take place before the end of April. 





   

ORDINANCE NO. 17-0417 
                                                                                                                                                                                                           

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 
 
AN ORDINANCE SETTING FORTH THE BUDGET AND MAKING APPROPRIATIONS OF SUMS OF 
MONEY FOR ALL OF THE NECESSARY EXPENDITURES OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
OF COOK AND DUPAGE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, FOR THE CORPORATE PURPOSE FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING MAY 1, 2017 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2018. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook 
Counties, Illinois, caused to be prepared in tentative form a Budget, and the Secretary of this Board has 
made the same conveniently available to public inspection for at least thirty (30) days prior to final action 
thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing will be held as to such Budget on the 17th day of April, 2017, notice 
of said hearing having been given at least one (1) week prior thereto as required by law and all other legal 
requirements having been complied with; 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Oak Brook Park 
District, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the fiscal year of this District be and the same hereby is fixed and declared to be 
from May 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018. 
 
 Section 2.  That the following Budget, containing an estimate of the amount available and 
expenditures and the appropriation contained therein, be and the same is hereby adopted as the Budget 
and Appropriations for this Park District for the said fiscal year and the following sums of money: 
 
 GENERAL FUND     $2,754,695.00 
  
 RECREATION FUND     $4,247,920.00 
 
 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND  $   200,000.00 
 
 SOCIAL SECURITY FUND    $   258,000.00 
 
 LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND    $   168,304.00 
 
 AUDIT FUND                  $     27,850.00 
 
             SPECIAL RECREATION FUND    $   124,700.00 
              
             DEBT SERVICE FUND                                                     $   330,914.00 
              
             RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND               $2,062,327.00 
 (Tennis Center) 
 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND                $2,330,000.00 
 
or as much thereof as may be authorized by law and hereby appropriated for the purpose of the Oak 
Brook Park District, as herein thereafter specified for said fiscal year. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   

SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATIONS 
 

 
GENERAL CORPORATE FUND    $2,754,695.00  
 
RECREATION PROGRAM FUND      4,247,920.00      
 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND        200,000.00 
 
SOCIAL SECURITY FUND                      258,000.00 
 
LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND          168,304.00 
 
AUDIT FUND              27,850.00 
 
SPECIAL RECREATION FUND                                                          124,700.00 
 
DEBT SERVICE FUND                     330,914.00  
 
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND                 2,062,327.00 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND                   2,330,000.00 
 
      TOTAL             $12,504,710.00 

 
Section 3.  That the estimated cash expected to be on hand at the end of this fiscal year is 

$2,394,289.00. 
 

Section 4.  That all balances of any item or items of any general appropriation made in the 
Ordinance be expended in making up any deficiency in any item in the same general appropriation, and 
for the same general purposes, or any like appropriation and for the same general purpose, or any like 
appropriation made by this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 5.  That all unexpended balances from annual appropriations of the previous years be 
and they are hereby re-appropriated for the same or similar purpose.  
 
 Section 6.  That should any clause, sentence, paragraph or part of this Ordinance be declared by 
a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance 
as a whole or any part thereof other than the part so declared to be invalid. 
 
 Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval 
according to law. 
 
 Adopted this 17th day of April, 2017, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 
 Aye: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 Nay: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 Absent: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
             
     ___________________________________ 
        President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Board Secretary 



                                                                                                                                              OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
                                                                                                                                            2017-2018 BUDGET SUMMARY

SOCIAL LIABILITY SPECIAL OPERATING RECREATIONAL DEBT CAPITAL GRAND

GENERAL RECREATION IMRF SECURITY INSURANCE AUDIT RECREATION TOTALS FACILITIES SERVICE PROJECTS TOTALS

REVENUES

  Taxes - Property 1,528,000$          894,000$               163,000$         231,000$             52,000$             14,000$           98,200$              2,980,200$         -$                       308,031$            -$                    3,288,231$           

  Taxes - Replacement 95,000                 32,000                   22,000             16,000                 8,000                 -                       173,000              -                             -                          0 173,000                

  Interest 10,000                 12,000                   750                  700                      250                    130                  550                     24,380                2,500                     335                     3,000                  30,215                  

  Program Fees 1,066,812            2,905,099              -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          3,971,911           1,457,500              -                          -                      5,429,411             

  Field  Rentals 97,000                 -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          97,000                -                             -                          -                      97,000                  

  Grants Received -                           -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          -                          -                             -                          -                      -                        

  Bond Proceeds -                           -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          -                          -                             -                          -                      -                        

  Other 3,000                   3,000                     -                       19,000                25,000                4,100                     -                          -                      29,100                  

  Total Revenues 2,799,812$          3,846,099$            185,750$         247,700$             60,250$             14,130$           117,750$            7,271,491$         1,464,100$            308,366$            3,000$                9,046,957$           

EXPENSES

  Administration 932,501$             896,232$               -$                     -$                        -$                       -$                     19,000$              1,847,733$         710,038$               -$                        -$                        2,557,771$           

  Parks 713,412               -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          713,412              -                             -                          -                          713,412                

  Professional Services 81,199                 -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          81,199                -                             -                          -                          81,199                  

  Recreation Center 964,371               -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          964,371              -                             -                          -                          964,371                

  Buildings - CPW & Tennis Ctr. 63,212                 -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          63,212                366,919                 -                          -                          430,131                

  Programs -                              2,988,688              -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          2,988,688           490,370                 -                          -                          3,479,058             

  Other -                           -                             200,000           258,000               168,304             27,850             105,700              759,854              -                             330,914              2,330,000           3,420,768             

  Capital Projects -                           363,000                 -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          363,000              495,000                 -                          -                          858,000                

  Total Expenses 2,754,695$          4,247,920$            200,000$         258,000$             168,304$           27,850$           124,700$            7,781,469$         2,062,327$            330,914$            2,330,000$         12,504,710$         

Revenues Over/Under 
Expenses 45,117$               (401,821)$              (14,250)$          (10,300)$             (108,054)$          (13,720)$          (6,950)$               (509,978)$           (598,227)$              (22,548)$             (2,327,000)$        (3,457,753)$          

Transfers In -                           -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          -                          -                             22,884                410,000              432,884                

Transfers (Out) (410,000)              -                             -                       -                          -                         -                       -                          (410,000)             -                             -                          (22,884)               (432,884)               

   

Beginning Balance- 5/1/17 1,119,703$          1,272,088$            122,136$         47,625$               127,351$           21,307$           12,919$              2,723,129$         1,113,436$            62,316$              1,953,161$         5,852,042$           

Ending Balance- 4/30/18 754,820$             870,267$               107,886$         37,325$               19,297$             7,587$             5,969$                1,803,151$         515,209$               62,652$              13,277$              2,394,289$           



I, Kevin Tan, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified treasurer of the Oak Brook

Park District and the chief fiscal officer of said Park District;  as such officer I do further

certify that the revenues, by source, anticipated to be received by said Park District in

the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2017 and ending April 30, 2018 are estimated to be as

follows:

SOURCE AMOUNT

Property and Replacement Taxes

           General Corporate 1,623,000.00$                            

           Recreation 926,000.00                                 

           Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 185,000.00                                 

           Special Recreation Funds 98,200.00                                   

           Social Security Fund 247,000.00                                 

           Liability Insurance 60,000.00                                   

           Audit 14,000.00                                   

           Debt Service 308,031.00                                 

Sub-Total 3,461,231.00$                            

Non-Taxable Revenues

           Interest Earned 30,215.00$                                 

           Program Fees 1,823,479.00                              

           Recreation Center/Memberships & Fees 1,163,812.00                              

           Racquet Club/Tennis Court Fund 1,457,500.00                              

           Aquatic Center 1,081,620.00                              

           Grants -                                              

           Bonds -                                              

           Other 29,100.00                                   

Sub-Total 5,585,726.00$                            

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 9,046,957.00$                            

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the said

Park District this 17th day of April, 2017.

Kevin Tan

Treasurer and Chief Fiscal Officer

SEAL

CERTIFICATION OF ESTIMATE OF

REVENUE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) 
COUNTIES OF   ) 
DUPAGE & COOK ) S.S. 

 
 
I, Laure L. Kosey, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Secretary of the Oak Brook Park District 
in the county and state aforesaid, and as such Secretary, I am the keeper of the records and files of the 
Board of Park Commissioners of said Park District. 
 
I do further certify that the attached and foregoing is a true and complete copy of the “Combined Annual 
Budget and Appropriation Ordinance of the Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, 
Illinois, for the Fiscal Year beginning May 1, 2017 and ending April 30, 2018, as adopted by the 
Board of Park Commissioners at its properly convened meeting held on April 17, 2017, as appears from 
the official records of said Park District in my care and custody. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature and the corporate seal of said 
Park District at Oak Brook, Illinois this 17th day of April, 2017. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Laure L. Kosey, Secretary  
Board of Park Commissioners 
Oak Brook Park District 
 
 
 
SEAL 





ORDINANCE NO. 17-0418         

 

AN ORDINANCE FOR TRANSFERRING ANTICIPATED UNEXPENDED  

FUNDS FROM CERTAIN APPROPRIATION ITEMS TO OTHER  

ITEMS OF APPROPRIATION 

 

 

WHEREAS, the first six months of fiscal year 2016-2017 of the Oak Brook 

Park District have elapsed; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4-4 of the Park District Code provides that, after the 

first six months of any fiscal year, anticipated unexpended funds from any 

appropriation item may be transferred, by a two-thirds vote, to any other item of 

appropriation, so that the item to which said transfer is made is increased to the 

extent of the amount so transferred; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners has determined that it is 

necessary and desirable to make certain appropriation transfers as provided herein, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Park 

Commissioners of the Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, 

as follows: 

 Section 1: Anticipated unexpended funds from certain specified budget and 

appropriation line items in the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for fiscal year 

2016-2017, in the amounts set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, are hereby 

transferred to those specific line items and in the amounts which are also set forth 

in such Exhibit A, such line items to be increased to the extent of the amount so 

transferred. 



 Section 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage 

and approval by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Commissioners. 

Section 3.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 Passed and approved this 17th day of April, 2017. 

 

 AYES:  ___________________________________________ 

 NAYS:  ___________________________________________ 

 ABSENT: __________________________________________ 

 

     Approved: 

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Sharon Knitter, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Laure L. Kosey, Secretary  



Original Revised
Fund & Account Budget Transfer Transfer Budget

Department Description Balance To From Balance

01-01 Corporate/Administration

01-01-630-000 Salaries-Administration Full -Time 478,642.52$    31,357.48$      -$               510,000.00$    

01-01-740-025 Salaries-Administration Part -Time 83,455.84        -                   (14,000.00)     69,455.84        

01-01-740-025 Contingency 110,000.00      -                   (17,357.48)     92,642.52        

01-01-650-000 Group Medical & Life 119,654.82      7,345.18          -                 127,000.00      

01-01-740-025 Contingency 92,642.52        -                   (7,345.18)       85,297.34        

01-01-680-050 Other 1,750.00          950.00             2,700.00          

01-01-740-025 Contingency 85,297.34        -                   (950.00)          84,347.34        

01-01-700-000 Professional Organizations 2,369.00          516.00             -                 2,885.00          

01-01-700-001 Community Organizations 2,900.00          550.00             -                 3,450.00          

01-01-700-002 State & Regional Organizations 9,000.00          1,350.00          -                 10,350.00        

01-01-700-050 Other 400.00             225.00             -                 625.00             

01-01-740-025 Contingency 84,347.34        -                   (2,641.00)       81,706.34        

01-01-800-001 Non-capital Furniture 2,000.00          750.00             -                 2,750.00          

01-01-800-005 Non-capital Computer & Printer 5,150.00          350.00             -                 5,500.00          

01-01-740-025 Contingency 81,706.34        -                   (1,100.00)       80,606.34        

Department Total: 1,159,315.72$ 43,393.66$      (43,393.66)$   1,159,315.72$ 

01-05 Central Park

01-05-690-000 Workshops 3,875.00$        1,225.00$        -$               5,100.00$        

01-05-631-000 Part-Time Maintenance 22,660.00        -                   (1,225.00)       21,435.00        

01-05-750-014 Irrigation Services 2,000.00          4,500.00          -                 6,500.00          

01-05-750-015 Tree Maintenance Services 5,000.00          3,200.00          -                 8,200.00          

01-05-631-000 Part-Time Maintenance 21,435.00        -                   (3,750.00)       17,685.00        

01-01-740-025 Contingency 80,606.34        -                   (3,950.00)       76,656.34        

01-05-790-021 Athletic Fields 13,500.00        9,000.00          -                 22,500.00        

01-05-770-000 Electricity 10,864.00        -                   (2,500.00)       8,364.00          

01-01-740-025 Contingency 76,656.34        -                   (6,500.00)       70,156.34        

Department Total: 236,596.68$    17,925.00$      (17,925.00)$   236,596.68$    

01-07 Forest Glen Park

01-07-750-008 Mowing Services 4,890.00$        1,810.00$        -$               6,700.00$        

01-01-740-025 Contingency 70,156.34        -                   (1,810.00)       68,346.34        

Department Total: 75,046.34$      1,810.00$        (1,810.00)$     75,046.34$      

01-09 Dean Property

01-09-750-033 Barn Maintenance 250.00$           1,150.00$        -$               1,400.00$        

01-01-740-025 Contingency 68,346.34        -                   (1,150.00)       67,196.34        

Department Total: 68,596.34$      1,150.00$        (1,150.00)$     68,596.34$      

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT

EXHIBIT A

BUDGET TRANSFERS- FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017

Page 1 of 4



Original Revised
Fund & Account Budget Transfer Transfer Budget

Department Description Balance To From Balance

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT

EXHIBIT A

BUDGET TRANSFERS- FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017

01-10 Professional Services

01-10-821-000 General Counsel 50,000.00$      28,000.00$      -$               78,000.00$      

01-01-740-025 Contingency 67,196.34        -                   (28,000.00)     39,196.34        

Department Total: 117,196.34$    28,000.00$      (28,000.00)$   117,196.34$    

01-15 Building / Recreation Center

01-15-630-000 Recreation Center Full-Time 112,266.60$    7,733.40$        -$               120,000.00$    

01-15-631-001 Recreation Center Part-Time Front Desk 134,881.59      -                   (7,733.40)       127,148.19      

01-15-700-002 State & Regional Organizations 608.00             692.00             -                 1,300.00          

01-15-631-001 Recreation Center Part-Time Front Desk 127,148.19      -                   (692.00)          126,456.19      

01-15-730-001 Office Supplies 3,000.00          1,000.00          -                 4,000.00          

01-15-631-001 Recreation Center Part-Time Front Desk 126,456.19      -                   (1,000.00)       125,456.19      

01-15-780-000 Theme Party/Food & Beverage 1,560.00          340.00             -                 1,900.00          

01-15-780-002 Theme Party/ Program Material 600.00             650.00             -                 1,250.00          

01-15-780-004 Theme Party/Expansion & Repair 1,400.00          400.00             -                 1,800.00          

01-15-631-001 Recreation Center Part-Time Front Desk 125,456.19      -                   (1,390.00)       124,066.19      

01-15-790-007 Locker Room Supplies 11,574.00        7,176.00          -                 18,750.00        

01-15-631-001 Recreation Center Part-Time Front Desk 124,066.19      -                   (7,176.00)       116,890.19      

01-15-840-002 MasterCard/Visa Fees 6,000.00          1,700.00          7,700.00          

01-15-840-025 Vending Snacks 6,000.00          1,600.00          7,600.00          

01-01-740-025 Contingency 39,196.34        -                   (3,300.00)       35,896.34        

Department Total: 820,213.29$    21,291.40$      (21,291.40)$   820,213.29$    

02-01 Recreation/Administration

02-01-660-002 Mileage Reimbursement 800.00$           450.00$           -$               1,250.00$        

02-01-690-001 Conferences 6,800.00          650.00             -                 7,450.00          

02-01-800-000 Non-Capital/Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 1,000.00          1,000.00          -                 2,000.00          

02-01-631-000 Administration Part-Time 59,652.19        -                   (2,100.00)       57,552.19        

Department Total: 68,252.19$      2,100.00$        (2,100.00)$     68,252.19$      

02-21 Fitness Center

02-21-670-000 Maintenance/Contracts & Leases 10,030.00$      3,000.00$        -$               13,030.00$      

02-21-750-000 Towel Services/Replacement 9,760.00          2,490.00          -                 12,250.00        

02-21-760-000 Exercise Equipment Maintenance 6,000.00          6,500.00          -                 12,500.00        

02-21-840-025 Contingency 110,000.00      -                   (11,990.00)     98,010.00        

Department Total: 135,790.00$    11,990.00$      (11,990.00)$   135,790.00$    

Page 2 of 4



Original Revised
Fund & Account Budget Transfer Transfer Budget

Department Description Balance To From Balance

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT

EXHIBIT A

BUDGET TRANSFERS- FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017

02-25 Aquatic  Center

02-25-705-001 Birthday Party- Group Rentals 16,300.00$      2,600.00$        -$               18,900.00$      

02-25-750-021 Pool Repairs 16,000.00        -                   (2,600.00)       13,400.00        

Department Total: 32,300.00$      2,600.00$        (2,600.00)$     32,300.00$      

02-30 Children's Programs

02-30-631-215 Youth Basketball 6,563.75$        2,500.00$        -$               9,063.75$        

02-30-631-219 Tae Kwon Do 24,000.00        -                   (2,500.00)       21,500.00        

Department Total: 30,563.75$      2,500.00$        (2,500.00)$     30,563.75$      

02-31 Preschool Programs

02-31-631-001 EC Preschool Morning 97,318.12$      20,181.88$      -$               117,500.00$    

02-31-800-200 Early Childhood Non-Capital Small Equipment 5,000.00          850.00             -                 5,850.00          

02-21-840-025 Contingency 98,010.00        -                   (21,031.88)     76,978.12        

Department Total: 200,328.12$    21,031.88$      (21,031.88)$   200,328.12$    

02-32 Youth Programs

02-32-631-004 Youth Playground Camp Counselor 33,627.00        2,000.00          -                 35,627.00        

02-21-840-025 Contingency 76,978.12        -                   (2,000.00)       74,978.12        

Department Total: 110,605.12$    2,000.00$        (2,000.00)$     110,605.12$    

02-40 Adult Programs

02-40-631-171 Men's Basketball 2,583.00          780.00             -                 3,363.00          

02-40-640-175 Co-Ed Softball 3,432.00          -                   (780.00)          2,652.00          

Department Total: 6,015.00$        780.00$           (780.00)$        6,015.00$        

02-50 Pioneer Programs

02-50-757-300 Trips- Dinner & Tickets 9,500.00$        6,000.00$        -$               15,500.00$      

02-50-754-300 Trip Admissions 30,000.00        -                   (2,250.00)       27,750.00        

02-50-761-000 Multi-Day Trip- Lodging 86,500.00        -                   (3,750.00)       82,750.00        

Department Total: 126,000.00$    6,000.00$        (6,000.00)$     126,000.00$    

02-60 Special Events & Trips

02-60-752-001 Contract Services- EQ Pink 5K 5,900.00          100.00             -                 6,000.00          

02-60-752-012 Contract Services- EQ Haunted Forest 2,050.00          300.00             -                 2,350.00          

02-60-765-005 Program Materials- Oktoberfest 3,950.00          4,000.00          -                 7,950.00          

02-21-840-025 Contingency 74,978.12        -                   (4,400.00)       70,578.12        

Department Total: 86,878.12$      4,400.00$        (4,400.00)$     86,878.12$      

Page 3 of 4



Original Revised
Fund & Account Budget Transfer Transfer Budget

Department Description Balance To From Balance

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT

EXHIBIT A

BUDGET TRANSFERS- FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017

02-80 Marketing

02-80-630-000 Marketing- Full- Time 159,325.08$    2,499.92$        -$               161,825.00$    

02-80-823-000 Public Relations -                   10,000.00        -                 10,000.00        

02-21-840-025 Contingency 70,578.12        -                   (12,499.92)     58,078.20        

Department Total: 229,903.20$    12,499.92$      (12,499.92)$   229,903.20$    

07-01 Tennis Center / Administration 

07-01-720-000 Business/Line Charges 10,800.00$      1,500.00$        -$               12,300.00$      

07-01-720-001 Mobile Charges -                   1,150.00          -                 1,150.00          

07-01-740-025 Contingency 75,000.00        -                   (2,650.00)       72,350.00        

Department Total: 85,800.00$      2,650.00$        (2,650.00)$     85,800.00$      

07-71 Tennis Center / Building

07-71-780-000 Risk Management/PDRMA 27,000.00$      8,000.00$        -$               35,000.00$      

07-01-740-025 Contingency 72,350.00        -                   (8,000.00)       64,350.00        

Department Total: 99,350.00$      8,000.00$        (8,000.00)$     99,350.00$      

07-75 Tennis Center/Programs

07-75-631-000 Part Time Salaries 285,000.00$    45,000.00$      -$               330,000.00$    

07-01-740-025 Contingency 64,350.00        -                   (45,000.00)     19,350.00        

Department Total: 349,350.00$    45,000.00$      (45,000.00)$   349,350.00$    

09-01 Special Recreation Fund

09-01-631-000 Part-Time Salaries 41,000.00$      1,500.00$        -$               42,500.00$      

09-01-700-000 Gateway Special Recreation 33,000.00        1,500.00          -                 34,500.00        

09-01-800-000 Non-Capital Small Equipment 30,000.00        -                   (3,000.00)       27,000.00        

Department Total: 104,000.00$    3,000.00$        (3,000.00)$     104,000.00$    

04-90 Liability Insurance Fund 

04-90-921-000 Unemployment Insurance -$                 11,500.00$      -$               11,500.00$      

04-90-920-000 Risk Management Pool/PDRMA 115,000.00      -                   (11,500.00)     103,500.00      

Department Total: 115,000.00$    11,500.00$      (11,500.00)$   115,000.00$    

Page 4 of 4





RESOLUTION NO. 17-0419 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT AND CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LTD. 

FOR THE TURF GRASS MOWING PROJECT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) is authorized to enter contracts 

for supplies, materials and work (70 ILCS 1250/8-1); and  

 WHEREAS, on February 14, 2014, the District and Classic Landscape, Ltd. (the 

“Contractor”) entered a two-year Agreement for Turf Grass Mowing services (the “Agreement”) 

with a term remaining in full force and effect through April 30, 2016, and Section 2 of the 

Agreement provided that it could be extended for up to two (2) years upon approval of such an 

extension by the District and the Contractor, and upon prior appropriation therefor; and 

 WHEREAS, the District and the Contractor have agreed to an extension of one (1) year, 

with a two percent (2%) increase in the Contract Price, 

 WHEREAS, the District has appropriated sufficient funds for such extension and 

increase of the Contract Price; and 

 WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District Board of Park Commissioners has determined 

that the best interest of the District and the public will be served to extend the Agreement based 

on the terms and conditions set for in the Amendment.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners of 

the Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The Board of Park Commissioners of the District hereby approves a one 

(1) year extension of the Agreement, from April 30, 2017 to April 30, 2018 subject to the terms 

and conditions of the "Amendment to an Agreement Between the Oak Brook Park District and 

Classic Landscape, Ltd. for Turf Grass Mowing" (the "Amendment"), and the President and 



 

 2 

Secretary of the District are hereby authorized, respectively, to execute and attest the 

Amendment in substantially the form attached hereto and made a part of this Resolution as 

Exhibit "A". 

Section 2.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 

Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval as provided by law.  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17
th

 DAY OF APRIL, 2017. 

AYES: ______________________________________________ 

NAYS: ______________________________________________ 

ABSENT: ____________________________________________ 

____________________________________ 
Sharon Knitter, President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 

Laure Kosey, Secretary 
 
 
 
 



AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT AND CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LTD.  

FOR THE TURF GRASS MOWING PROJECT 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") to the "Agreement Between the Oak Brook 
Park District and Classic Landscape, Ltd. for the Turf Grass Mowing Project," dated February 
14, 2014 (the "Agreement"), is made and entered into by and between the Oak Brook Park 
District  (“District") and Classic Landscape, Ltd. (“Classic").  District and Classic are hereinafter 
sometimes referred to together as the “Parties.”   
 

WITNESSETH: 

 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Agreement for the provision of turf grass 
maintenance services to various District parks by Classic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article II of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement expired 
on April 30, 2016 unless the Parties agree to extend the Agreement upon the same terms and 
conditions, for period up to two (2) years; provided that the District appropriated sufficient funds 
for such an extension; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend the Agreement by one (1) year, with a two 
percent (2%) increase in the Contract Price; and    
 

WHEREAS, the District has appropriated sufficient funds for such extension and 
increase of the Contract Price; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District Board of Park Commissioners has determined 
that the best interest of the District and the public will be served to extend the Agreement based 
on the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the District and Classic agree to the terms and conditions 
of this Amendment as follows: 
  

ARTICLE I 

THE RECITALS ARE PART OF THIS AMENDMENT 
 
 The representations, covenants and recitations set forth in the foregoing recitals are 
material to this Amendment and are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this 
Amendment as though fully set forth in this Article I. 

 

ARTICLE II 

EXTENSION OF TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
 In accordance with Article II of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement is hereby 
extended for one (1) year, with an expiration date of April 30, 2018. 
 



2 
 

ARTICLE III 

INCREASE IN CONTRACT PRICE 

 

 Article III of the Agreement is hereby amended to provide a two (2%) increase in the 
Contract Price for:  a) turf grass mowing on a per mow basis for each park; and b) leaf pick-up 
on a per pick-up basis for each park.  
 
 

ARTICLE IV 

REMAINING AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

 
All other provisions, terms and conditions of the Agreement not amended by this 

Amendment shall remain in full force and effect without revision.  In the event of any conflict 
between the provisions of this Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions 
of this Amendment will control.  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement this 17th day of 
April, 2017. 
 
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT  CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LTD. 
 
By: _______________________________ By: ________________________________ 
Sharon Knitter, Its President   Its: __________________________ 
     
Attest: ____________________________ Attest: _____________________________ 
Laure Kosey, Its Secretary  Its: __________________________     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
636382v4 





 1 

RENEWAL OF THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  

DATED MARCH 10, 2008, BY AND BETWEEN  

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF BUTLER SCHOOL DISTRICT #53,  

THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT AND THE LAGRANGE AREA DEPARTMENT 

OF SPECIAL EDUCATION FOR A COOPERATIVE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM  

AT THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT RECREATION CENTER 

______________________________________________________________________________  

 
THIS RENEWAL is made and entered into this April 17,2017 by and between the Board 

of Education of Butler School District #53, a unit of local government located in DuPage 
County, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the “School District”), the Oak Brook Park District, a 
unit of local government located in DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Park District”), and the LaGrange Area Department of Special Education, a special 
education joint agreement cooperative in DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois (hereinafter 
referred to as "LADSE"), hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the "Parties", 

  
 WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Article VII, §10 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois (5 ILCS 220/1, et seq.) authorize units 
of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves to exercise, combine or 
transfer any power or function, in any manner not prohibited by law; and to contract with any 
one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking, 
or to combine, transfer or exercise any powers, functions, privileges or authority which any of 
the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, §10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution further provides that units 
of local government may contract and otherwise associate with individuals, associations and 
corporations in any manner not prohibited by law or ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, such provisions of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and the 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois encourage mutual cooperation for 
matters of mutual concern; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Park District provides a preschool program at its Recreation Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, LADSE is a special education joint agreement cooperative that provides 

special education services and assistance to school districts in DuPage and Cook Counties; and   
 

WHEREAS, the School District is a member of LADSE, and is responsible for providing 
early childhood learning opportunities for special education and special needs students in the 
School District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered an "Intergovernmental Agreement By and Between the 

Board of Education of Butler School District #53, the Oak Brook Park District and the LaGrange 
Area Department of Special Education for a Cooperative Preschool Program at the Oak Brook 



 2 

Park District Recreation Center", dated March 10, 2008 (the "Agreement"), by which the Parties 
agreed that the Park District would provide enrollment space in the Park District's preschool 
program to assist the School District in meeting the special needs of the School District’s 
students, and that the School District and LADSE would provide certain personnel, funding, 
equipment, supplies, training, screening and testing, and other assistance with the Park District's 
preschool programming; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement has been amended by the Parties from time to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School District and LADSE have provided written notice to the Park 

District of their desire and intent to renew the Agreement as amended.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and 

agreements as hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Incorporation of Preambles.  The preambles to this Amendment and Renewal are 
incorporated and made a part hereof as though fully set forth herein. 

 
2. Renewal of the Agreement.  Pursuant to Section 5 of the Agreement, the Parties 

hereby agree to the renewal of the Agreement for the 2017 - 2018 school year. 
  

3. Continued Effectiveness of Other Terms and Conditions of Agreement.  All other 
terms and conditions of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for the 2017-2018 
school year. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day 

and year first above written. 
 
BOARD OF EDUCATION OF OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BUTLER SCHOOL DISTRICT #53 
 
By: ________________________________ By: ______________________________ 
 Alan Hanzlik, Its President    Sharon Knitter, Its President 
 
Attest: ______________________________ Attest: ____________________________ 
  Alan Kumar, Its Secretary    Laure L. Kosey, Its Secretary 

 
LADSE 

 

By: _____________________________________ 
 Dr. Sheri Wernsing, Its Executive Director 
 
Attest: ___________________________________ 
 Melissa Hanke, Its Program Coordinator 





1 
 

RENEWAL OF THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT DATED JANUARY 18, 2016, BY AND BETWEEN 
THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF BUTLER SCHOOL DISTRICT #53, THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT FOR A 

BEFORE AND AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM AT BROOK FOREST ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 

This Agreement dated this 17th day of April, 2017 by and between the Board of Commissioners of Oak 
Brook Park District, DuPage Count, Illinois (hereinafter the “Park District”) and the Board of Education 
Butler School District 53, DuPage County, Illinois (hereinafter the “School District”)(and hereinafter 
sometimes referred to collectively as the “Parties”) provides for hosting of Park District Before and After 
School Recreational Programs (hereinafter the “Program”, “Programs” or ”Programming”) as follows: 
 

WITNESSETH: 
  

WHEREAS, the Park District and the School District are “units of local government” as defined 
under Article VII, Section 10, of the Constitution of Illinois 1970 and are “public agencies” as defined 
under Paragraph 2 of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS220/1 et seq.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Park District and the School District have mutually determined that it would be in 

the best interest of the citizens of the community to be able to utilize certain facilities at the Brook 
Forest Elementary School (the “School”) for the Programs when it is not being used by the School 
District for its own before and after school program; and 

 
WHEREAS, by this Agreement, the School District intends to authorize the Park District to use 

certain facilities at the School for a facility usage fee as provided in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, parents of students who attend the School will benefit from the Programming to be 

provided by the Park District; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Enabling Authority 
 

a. This Agreement is entered into between the Parties pursuant to the Constitution of 
the State of Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act. 
 

2. General Conditions 
 

a. Program 
 

i. That subsidized fees shall be made available for the Programs for eligible 
low income families of the School District, through the Park District or 
other financial assistance programs; and  

 
ii.     That Park District Programming will provide students of the School District 

with age-appropriate recreational physical, educational and social 
activities, including homework assistance; and 



2 
 

iii. That a snack program is made available by the Park District at no 
additional cost to the families or participants; and 

 
iv. That both the Park District and the School District will actively promote 

the Programs to School District families. 
 
v. That the facility usage fee to be paid by the Park District to the School 

District shall be $10.00 per week for before school care and $20.00 per 
week for after school care.  

 
b. School District Facilities  

 
i. The School District shall provide the Park District with the use of the 

following facilities at the School for the Programs, without requiring any 
facility fee: the gymnasium, washrooms, designated classrooms, 
designated kitchen storage areas, designated exterior play area, and other 
designated storage areas, together with such corridors and entrance ways 
necessary to gain ingress and egress to and from said areas, which shall be  
limited to pre-established schedules and times (the “School Facilities”).  
The specific School Facilities shall be agreed upon by the Parties prior to 
the commencement of the Programming.  The Park District Programs will 
periodically be required to share these School Facilities with other user 
groups scheduled within the School. 

 
ii. The School’s Administrative Staff will notify the Park District site staff, 

with as much advance notice as possible, of any proposed conflicting or 
shared use of the School Facilities.  When possible, the School’s 
Administrative Staff may offer alternative spaces to accommodate the 
Programs when such conflicts or sharing occur. 

 
c. Terms of Agreement 

 
i. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one year effective with 

the 2017/2018 school year. 
 
ii. This Agreement may be renewed for additional one-year terms if either of 

the Parties hereto notifies the other in writing no less than sixty (60) days 
prior to September 15. 

 
iii. The Park District has the right to discontinue any Program if participation 

falls below seven (7) total students, by written notification to the School 
District prior to September 15. 

 
  



3 
 

d. Access to School 
 

i. The School shall provide ingress and egress to Park District Program 
employees and Program participants, as authorized by the School District, 
during hours of Program operation, and to other areas needed to meet 
crisis protocol and procedures. 

 
e. Parking 

 
i. Authorized Park District employees and Program participants shall be 

permitted to park vehicles in any parking lot at the School during the 
hours of operation for the Programs without interference or hindrance, 
except reasonable periods of repair or construction or other School 
programming. 

 
3. Use of School Facilities 
 

a. Time Scheduling  
 

i.  During regular School attendance days, for the purposes of before school 
Programming, the Park District shall have use of the School Facilities 
beginning at 6:45 a.m. and ending at the School’s start time. 

 
ii. During regular School attendance days, for the purposes of after school 

Programming, the Park District shall have use of the School Facilities 
beginning at the time of School dismissal and ending when all students 
have been picked up, with a published ending time of 6:00 p.m. 
 

iii. The School District will allow adequate time for Program set-up and take-
down. 

 
iv. If scheduling conflicts occur with the School, the School shall be given 

priority over the Programs.  Both Parties will cooperate in adjusting their 
needs to eliminate such conflicts. 

 
b.  Site Use and Maintenance  

 
i.  Refrigerator space is limited, but a small space will be designated for the 

Programs.  The School‘s custodial staff shall have no responsibility for the 
cleanliness of this unit. 

 
ii.  All kitchen surfaces and appliances must be cleaned after use. 

 
iii.  The School has designated storage space for use by the Park District.  

Materials must be stored securely and within designated spaces. The 
School District has no responsibility for these supplies.  If space allows, 
the Park District may provide its own storage cabinets with the permission 
of the School‘s Principal. 



4 
 

iv. School District-owned equipment and/or supplies are available for use 
only as authorized by the School or School District.  Authorized equipment 
and/or supplies must remain in the area authorized for use.  All other 
supplies and equipment are not available for use.  The Park District shall 
supply any needed games, educational materials, activities, art supplies 
and consumables.   

v.         No supplies or materials shall be left in the gymnasium or any other   
space following Park District use, other than in spaces designated for 
storage. 

 
vi. Lunch tables are available for use on a regular basis.  Park District staff will 

be responsible for the complete clean-up following all activities. 
 
vii. Snacks must be consumed at designated tables only and cleaned up after 

each use.  Only peanut-free snacks will be offered by the Park District 
during Program use. 

 
viii. School Facilities must be left in a clean orderly condition, including floors, 

walls and restrooms.  Accidents and general clean-up that require 
custodial assistance during the Programs will be handled by the Park 
District’s on-site staff.  All areas of the School should be left ready for use 
at the end of each Program session.            

 
ix. The Park District agrees that it shall promptly reimburse the School 

District for the cost of necessary repairs to or replacements of furnishings, 
fixtures and other improvements at the School that may be caused by the 
Park District’s operation of the Programs, normal wear and tear excepted.  
 

x. The School District agrees to provide reasonably required heating, 
electrical, and water services during such times as the Park District uses 
the School to operate the Programs. 

 
xi. The School office copier may be used upon request only and only for 

incidental, periodic use. 
 

xii. The School office and other non-designated classrooms are off-limits for 
Park District staff and participants unless previously scheduled. 
 

xiii. The School’s custodial staff shall have authority to request compliance 
with Site Use and Maintenance Regulations and to report any non-
compliance issues to the School’s administration. 

 
4.  Access to Internet and Network 

         
a.  The School shall make access to the Internet and the School’s wireless network 

available to the Park District for the Programs.   
b. Park District participants and staff are subject to Park District and School District 

electronic use policies, and only for materials related to the Programs. 



5 
 

 
5. Supervision  

 
a. The Park District’s Program Supervisor shall be responsible for adherence to all 

rules, regulations and procedures by the Park District and the participants, and shall 
serve as the primary contact between the School and the Park District regarding site 
operations and School-specific procedures for the Programs. 

 
b. Park District shall, at all times, maintain at least one qualified adult, over the age of 

18, at the School during all Program operation, which adult shall be designated as 
the Site Supervisor. 

 
c. The Park District and the School District shall work cooperatively with regard to 

performance standards and issues for Program supervisory staff. 
 
d. The Park District shall provide supervision for parent drop-off and pick-up areas. 

 
e. Park District support supervision personnel shall have the following qualifications: 
 

i. All such personnel shall be at least 18 years of age. 
 
ii. Personnel in a counselor position shall have a high school diploma, shall 

have a minimum of six (6) months’ experience in an environment with 
children 5-11 years of age, shall be trained in CPR and First Aid, and shall 
be required to pass an Illinois State Police Criminal Background Check and 
a drug test. 

 
iii. Personnel in a supervisor position shall have a college degree or have a 

high school diploma and a minimum of three (3) years’ child development 
experience with children 5-11 years of age, shall be trained in CPR and 
First Aid, and shall be required to pass an Illinois State Police Criminal 
Background Check and a drug test. 

 
6. Specific Safety Requirements 

 
a. The Park District shall follow the School District’s Board of Education policies 

regarding local, state and federal licensing requirements and those regarding safety. 

b.  Alcoholic beverages, smoking, drugs or weapons are strictly forbidden on School 
  property. 

 
c. Access to the School building shall be limited to specified entrance(s) only.  All other 

entrances must remain locked.  Doors must not be propped open or left ajar at any 
time. 

 
d. Fire exits, doorways and hallways shall be kept passable at all times. 
 



6 
 

7. Insurance Requirements:  Each Party shall be required to maintain the following insurance 
coverages: 

 
a. General Liability Coverage, including Contractual Liability Coverage, specifically 

including bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage 
          

i. Each occurrence:  $3,000,000, written on an occurrence basis 
 
ii. General aggregate:  $2,000,000 
 

b. Worker’s Compensation Coverage 
 

i. Statutory for Illinois 
 
ii. Each accident:  $500,000 
 
iii. Disease policy limit:  $500,000 
 
iv. Disease each employee:  $500,000 

 
c. Excess Liability/Umbrella Coverage 
 

i.  $1,000,000 
 

d. Sexual Misconduct and Molestation Liability Coverage 
 

i. Each loss limit:  $1,000,000 
 
ii. Aggregate limit:  $1,000,000 
 
iii. Innocent party defense:  $300,000 

 
e. Each Party shall include the other Party, its public officials, employees, volunteers 

and agents, as additional insureds for all liability coverage.   In addition, each Party 

shall furnish the other Party with a certificate(s) of insurance, executed by a duly 

authorized representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance 

requirements set forth above. 

f. In the event that any Party is self-insured, member of an intergovernmental pool or 

provides for its risk financing by a means other than commercial insurance, that 

Party shall keep in force at all times during the term of this Agreement, all coverages 

provided for hereinabove notwithstanding provision of such coverages in such 

manner.   

g. The insurance company, self-insurance pool, or similar entity of the Party 

administering any claim, cause of action and the like, shall be allowed to raise on 



7 
 

behalf of the other Party any and all defenses, statutory and/or common law, to 

such claim or action that the other Party might have raised, including, but not 

limited to, any defense contained within the Illinois Governmental and 

Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq. 

8. Indemnification 

 

a. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Park District and School District                                
shall indemnify and hold each other harmless from any and all actions, costs,                                  
expenses, damages and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,                                   
resulting from death or bodily injury or damage to tangible physical property                                  
of the other, to the extent arising out of or resulting from the negligence or 
wrongful conduct of their respective employees or other authorized agents in 
connection with this Agreement.  However, neither Party shall indemnify the other 
against actions, costs, expenses, damages and liabilities to the extent attributable to 
the negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of the other Party.  If the Parties are 
both at fault hereunder, then any obligation to indemnify shall be proportional to 
their relative fault. 

 
9. Relationship of the Parties 

 
a. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any joint venture or      

partnership between the Parties.  Neither the Park District nor the School District 
shall have the power to bind or obligate the other except as to the extent expressly 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
10. No Third Party Beneficiary 

 
a. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the contracting Parties, and 

nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or impliedly, to provide any 
right or benefit of any kind whatsoever to any person or entity who is not a Party to 
this Agreement, or to acknowledge, establish or impose any legal duty to any third 
party. 

 
11. Assignment 

 
a. No part of this Agreement may be assigned by either of the Parties hereto without 

prior written consent of the other Party. 
 

12. Right to Amend 
 

 a. In the event that either Party desires to modify or amend this Agreement,                                
written notice thereof shall be given prior to September 15 of the preceding                                 
year for modification to be adopted for the subsequent year unless otherwise                                 
agreed.  Modification to this Agreement must be by formal public action of                                  
the elected Board of the respective Party. 

 



8 
 

13. Authority 
 

a. The individual officers of the Park District and the School District who have     
executed this Agreement represent and warrant that they have full power and     
lawful authority to execute this Agreement and perform and fulfill the obligations 
and responsibilities contemplated hereunder on behalf of and in the name of their 
respective governing boards. 

 
14. Successor 

 
a. It is the intention of the Parties hereto that this Agreement and each and all of     the 

provisions be binding on their successors in office. 
 
15. Multiple Counterparts 
 

a. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall, for    
all purposes, constitute a duplicate original. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year 

first above written. 
 
Board of Education of     Oak Brook Park District 
Butler School District #53    
 
By: __________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 Alan Hanzlik, Its President   Sharon Knitter, Its President 
 
Attest:  _______________________  Attest: _________________________ 
 Alan Kumar, Its Secretary   Laure L. Kosey, Its Secretary                        
 
 





Oak Brook Park District

Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade Bid Recap

April 9, 2017

Bids Opened in the Order of Receipt.

Contractor Bond Certs References Base Bid Alternate Deductive Bid

Amber Mechanical, Alsip, IL x x x 488,000.00$                     (20,000.00)$                        

Reinert Structures, Inc., Yorkville, IL x x x 375,000.00$                     (30,000.00)$                        

Pandecon, Inc. , Geneva, IL x x x 306,678.00$                     (12,315.00)$                        

Mechanical Concepts of IL, Romeoville, IL x x x 394,000.00$                     (15,500.00)$                        





 
 
 1 

 2017 AMENDMENT TO OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
THIS 2017 AMENDMENT TO OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“2017 Amendment”) is made this 1st day of May, 
2017, by and between the OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, an Illinois unit of local government 
(hereinafter referred to as the "District") and Laure L. Kosey, as Executive Director for the District 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Director"). 
 

WHEREAS, the District and the Director entered an “Oak Brook Park District Executive 
Director Employment Agreement” on February 5, 2010 (the “Employment Agreement”), to 
establish the terms and conditions of the Director’s employment as the District’s Executive 
Director; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and the Director amended the Employment Agreement on June 

13, 2011, April 9, 2012, March 18, 2013, and May 1, 2016, to provide for modifications to certain 
terms and conditions for compensation, reimbursement of expenses and automobile allowance for 
the Director; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and the Director have determined that it is necessary and desirable 

to further amend the Employment Agreement in accordance with the terms of this 2017 
Amendment, to provide for an extension of the term of the Employment Agreement, as heretofore 
amended, and compensation for the Director for the term of the Employment Agreement, as 
amended herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 

agreements herein contained, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. 2017 AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT.   The District and the Director 
hereby agree to the following amendments to the Employment Agreement:  
 

(A) Delete Section 2 of the Employment Agreement, and substitute the following: 
 

2. TERM.  The term of the Employment Agreement, as heretofore amended, 
shall be extended from May 1, 2017, through April 30, 2020, subject to the 
provisions hereinafter set forth concerning termination and appropriation of 
sufficient funds.  

 
(B) Delete Section 4 of the Employment Agreement, and substitute the following: 
 

4. COMPENSATION.   
 



 
 
 2 

 a. The Director’s base gross compensation from May 1, 2017, through 
April 30, 2020, shall be payable biweekly in the amount of $5,760.00, less 
customary withholdings, annualized to One Hundred Forty Nine Thousand 
Seven Hundred Sixty Dollars ($149,760.00).   

 
b. The Director shall receive a performance bonus in the gross amount 
of $7,000.00, less customary withholdings, effective May 13, 2017, and 
shall be eligible to receive a bonus on or before April 30 of each subsequent 
year of the Employment Agreement.   
 

 c. In addition to the annual bonus specified in 4.b, the Director shall 
receive a one-time bonus in the gross amount of $10,000 in the event that, 
prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the Director plays a substantial 
role in successfully obtaining a private donation to the Park District in an 
amount not less than $1,000,000 for the completion of the District’s ball 
field reconfiguration at Central Park.  

 
d. The Director shall receive an automobile allowance in the amount 
of Four Hundred Twenty Dollars ($420.00) per month for the term of the 
Employment Agreement, as amended. 

 
 e. Nothing herein shall preclude the District from offering the Director 

additional bonuses or increases as the Board may deem appropriate, in its 
sole discretion, during the term of the Employment Agreement, as amended. 

 
2. CONTINUED EFFECTIVENES OF OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT.  Except as provided in Section 1 of this 2017 
Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement, as heretofore 
amended, shall continue in full force and effect for the term of the Employment Agreement, as 
amended herein. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the day above 

first written. 
 
OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:  
       LAURE L. KOSEY 
 
By: _______________________________ ____________________________________  
 Sharon Knitter     Laure L. Kosey 
        Its President    
 
 
 
640019v2A       






























	April 17, 2017 Agenda
	April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.,
	Canterberry Room
	April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room

	April 17, 2017 Agendavote
	April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.,
	Canterberry Room
	April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	April 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room

	Public Hearing For Budget 4-17
	March 20 2017 regular meeting minutes
	March 20, 2017 – 6:30 p.m., Canterberry Room

	INVESTMENTS MARCH 2017
	GENERAL CORPORATE TREASURER'S REPORT MARCH 2017
	TENNIS CENTER TREASURER'S RERPORT MARCH 2017
	RECREATION CENTER YOY COMPARISON MARCH 2017
	TENNIS CENTER YOY COMPARISON MARCH 2017
	warrant 598
	Pettycash Corporate April 2017
	Sheet1

	Pettycash Recreation April 2017
	Sheet1

	AIM April Board Report 2017
	Finance Department Memo- March 2017
	General Fund Summary
	Recreation Fund Summary
	Recreational Facilities Fund Summary
	General Fund Charts
	INCOME STATEMENT CURRENT MONTH MARCH 2017
	INCOME STATEMENT YTD MARCH 2017
	CAPITAL EXPENDITURES MARCH 2017
	April 2017 Board Report
	AquaticBoardStat March 2017
	Swim lessons
	Birthday Parties

	March 2017 Athletic Field Revenue Report
	Sheet1

	Facility Stats Comparison New Chart 2016-2017 March 2017
	Facility Statistics

	Non Staff Membership 2016-2017 Stats
	Sheet2

	Parks Report
	unfinished Agenda Histories
	Budget Ordinance Packet.pdf
	Budget Ordinance- FY 2017_2018
	BUD SUM FOR 2017-2018-FINAL 4-17-17
	Cert of Est Revenues 2017-2018
	Secretary Cert 2018 - STATE OF ILLINOIS

	Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade Bid Recap 3-18-17.pdf
	Sheet1




